
 

        Superior East OPP Regional Detachment Board 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Tuesday, February 11, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. 
40 Broadway Avenue – Downstairs Board Room 

ZOOM LINK: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84470659801?pwd=Qso49Rcl6YXkzhCxQTuy4uyptaWa30.1  

  
 
 

 
(1) CALL TO ORDER & NOTE MEMBERS PRESENT  

 1.1 Land Acknowledgement 
The Superior East OPP Detachment Board recognizes that its work, and the work 
of its partners including the Ontario Provincial Police, take place on traditional 
Indigenous territories located throughout the Superior East Region. The Board is 
grateful to the First Nations, Metis and Inuit people who have cared for the lands 
we are located on since time immemorial and thank them for sharing their ancestral 
homelands with us.  

 
(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 2.1 Approval of Agenda (resolution) 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 

RESOLVED THAT the agenda for the Superior East OPP Detachment Board 
meeting held on Tuesday, February 11, 2024, be approved, as presented. 

CARRIED. 
 

(3) ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

(4) DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE 
THEREOF 

 
(5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 5.1 Tuesday, November 12, 2024 (resolution) 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 

RESOLVED THAT the minutes of the Superior East OPP Detachment Board 
meeting held on Tuesday, November 12, 2024, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 
 

(6) PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS 
 

(7) COMMUNICATIONS (item distributed by email)  

 7.1 
     
Email - Board Discussion Groups (Feb 2-25) 

 7.2 Email - 2025 OAPSB Call for Resolutions (Jan 30-25) 
 7.3 

Email - Peel Police Service Board Human Rights and Police Governance 
Report (Jan 28-25) 

 7.4 Email - Notice of the OAPSB AGM (Jan 22-25) 
 7.5 Email - Important Industry Communications (Jan 16-25) 



 

 7.6 
Email - The OAPSB Monthly Bulletin: January 2025 News and Updates 
(Jan 9-25) 

 7.7 Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-24) 
 7.8 

Email - Communication with the Minister - $77 Million Funding 
Announcement (Dec 10-24) 

 7.9 Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) 
 

(8) REPORTS OF THE DETACHMENT COMMANDER  
 8.1 Superior East Detachment Commander Report – October to December 

2024 (resolution) 
 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED THAT the Superior East OPP Detachment Commander’s Report 
dated October 2024-December 2024 as contained on pages 1 – 17 be adopted as 
presented. 

CARRIED.  
 

(9) ENQUIRIES BY MEMBERS 
 

(10) OLD BUSINESS 
 

(11) CONSIDERATION OF BY-LAWS 
 

(12) NEW BUSINESS 
 12.1     Draft - Travel Reimbursement Policy 
 12.2     Draft - Meeting Procedures Policy 
 12.3 Financial Update 
 

(13) NEXT MEETING DATE  
 13.1 Tuesday, May 13, 2025, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

(14) CLOSE OF MEETING  
 14.1 Close of Meeting (resolution) 

 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED THAT the meeting close at   p.m. 
 
CARRIED. 

 



Page 
 

 

Page 3 of 110



 

12-Nov-2024 

Page 1 of 6 

  
Superior East OPP Detachment 

Board Meeting 
 

Tuesday, November 12, 2024 
 

40 Broadway Avenue  

Board Room/Zoom 
 

4:00 PM 

 

 

MINUTES 
 
(1) CALL TO ORDER & NOTE MEMBERS PRESENT 

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. and Acting Chair M. O'Neill welcomed 
everyone to the meeting.  The Board approved M. O'Neill to act as Chair during 
the election.  
  
1.1 Land Acknowledgement – Read by M. O’Neill 

We will begin this meeting by acknowledging that we are gathering on 
land that has been inhabited by Indigenous peoples since time 
immemorial. 
We would like to recognize that we are in the Robinson-Superior Treaty 
territory and the land on which we are gathered today is the traditional 
territory of the Anishinaabe. Specifically, we acknowledge the 
neighbouring community of Michipicoten First Nation, for whom we have 
great respect. 
We also recognize the contributions of all Indigenous peoples, including 
the Métis, in shaping and strengthening the community and Province of 
Ontario. 

Action: 
Acting Secretary to ensure the new land acknowledgement is included at the 
next meeting reflecting treaty territories of the full detachment area. 

Present: 
Chris Buckell, David Jennings, Councillor Jim Hoffmann, Councillor Julila Hemphill 
(Zoom), Councillor Paul Bernier (Zoom), Staff Sgt. Kevin Fellinger (Zoom), Maury 
O'Neill (Recording Secretary) 
 
Absent: Councillor Dwijen Bharad, Councillor Pete Kistemaker 
 
Guests: None. 

(2) ELECTIONS 

2.1 Election of Chair (resolution) 
Election Chair M. O'Neill opened the nominations for the position of Chair.  

• P. Bernier nominated himself.  
• J. Hoffmann nominated C. Buckell. 

M. O'Neill called for nomination a second and third time then closed the 
nominations. 
Mr. Chris Buckell thanked his nominee however declined the nomination. 
Mr. Paul Bernier accepted the position of Chair.   

 
Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-07 
Seconded by:  C. Buckell 



MINUTES 
Superior East OPP Detachment Board - Tuesday, November 12, 2024 

 

12-Nov-2024 

Page 2 of 6 

RESOLVED THAT Paul Bernier be appointed as Chair of the Superior East OPP 
Detachment Board for the remainder of the term. 
CARRIED. 

2.2 Election of Vice-Chair (resolution) 
Election Chair M. O’Neill opened the nominations for the position of Vice-
Chair.  

• J. Hoffmann nominated C. Buckell. 
Chair P. Bernier called for nominations a second and third time then 
closed the nominations.  
C. Buckell accepted the nomination. 

 
Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-08 
Seconded by: P. Bernier 

RESOVLED THAT Chris Buckell be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Superior East 
OPP Detachment Board for the remainder of the term. 
CARRIED. 
The position of Chair was turned over to Mr. P. Bernier. 

(3) ADMINISTRATION OF OATH  

3.1 None. 
 

(4) DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
None. 

(5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5.1 Approval of Agenda (resolution) 
 

Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-09 
Seconded by: J. Hemphill 

RESOLVED THAT the Agenda for the SEOPP Board Meeting scheduled for 
Tuesday, November 12, 2024, be approved, as presented. 
CARRIED. 

(6) ANNOUNCEMENTS 
None. 

(7) DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL 
NATURE THEREOF 
None. 

(8) APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

8.1 Tuesday, October 8, 2024 (resolution) 
 

Moved by: C. Buckell R. SEOPPB2024-10 
Seconded by: J. Hoffmann 

RESOLVED THAT the minutes of the Superior East OPP Detachment Board 
meeting, scheduled for Tuesday, October 8th, 2024, be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

Action: 
Minutes to be signed and shared with partner municipalities.  

  



MINUTES 
Superior East OPP Detachment Board - Tuesday, November 12, 2024 

 

12-Nov-2024 

Page 3 of 6 

(9) PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS 
None. 

(10) COMMUNICATIONS (Items distributed via e-mail) 

10.1 (a) 2023-2025 - Strategic Plan 
(b) 2023-2025 - North East Region Action Plan 
(c) 2023-2025 - Superior East Action Plan 
(d) OPP Detachment Board Remuneration Survey Results 
(e) 2024 OAPSB Labour Conference and 2025 OAPSB Spring 
Conference 
The Board agreed that questions may be asked on any communications 
received. All Plans that were previously shared was for Board members 
to become familiar with the information. 

 

(11) REPORT OF THE DETACHMENT COMMANDER 

11.1 Superior East Detachment Commander Report - August - October 
2024 (resolution) 

Data in the report may not include month over month information so totals 
may change.  
Detachment Commander (DC) Fellinger spoke on his report. He provided 
the current OPP Strategic Plan as well as the Northeast Region and 
Superior East Action Plan for Board members awareness. 
DC Fellinger provided an update on staffing and is concerned regarding 
recruitment as efforts continue to recruit new members.  
Awaiting an update from SOLGEN on the 2025-2027 Municipal Grant 
R.I.D.E. funding program.  Due to changes with the new Community 
Safety Policing Act, Detachments are unsure funding will continue to be 
received. 
Plans are underway for the start of the 2024 Festive R.I.D.E. program 
over the holiday season and Mandatory Alcohol Screening will be 
conducted during the program. 
More foot patrol will be conducted around communities based on the 
report to date not showing many hours on foot patrols.  
Other initiative included commercial vehicle inspections in Sault Ste Marie 
which showed many infractions and will do some local inspections and 
report back at the next meeting.  
Situational Table meetings are starting in Chapleau which OPP 
detachment members participate in.  

 
Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-11 
Seconded by: C. Buckell 

RESOLVED THAT the Superior East OPP Detachment Commander’s Report 
dated August to October 2024, as contained on pages 1 – 17 be adopted as 
presented. 
CARRIED. 

(12) ENQUIRIES BY MEMBERS 
None. 

(13) OLD BUSINESS 

13.1 Terms of Reference (resolution)   
The Terms of Reference were reviewed and approved as presented.  

 
  



MINUTES 
Superior East OPP Detachment Board - Tuesday, November 12, 2024 

 

12-Nov-2024 

Page 4 of 6 

Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-12 
Seconded by: J. Hemphill 

RESOLVED THAT the Superior East OPP Detachment Board does hereby adopt 
the Terms of Reference as attached hereto. 
CARRIED. 

13.2 Approval of 2025 Budget Estimates (resolution) 
 

Moved by: C. Buckell R. SEOPPB2024-13 
Seconded by: D. Jennings 

WHEREAS pursuant to the CSPA, 2019, Section 71 (1) provides that an O.P.P. 
detachment board shall prepare estimates, in accordance with the regulations 
made by the Minister, of the total amount that will be required to pay the expenses 
of the board’s operation, other than the remuneration of board members. 2019, c. 
1, Sched. 1, s. 71 (1); 2023, c. 12, Sched. 1, s. 31 (1) and; 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to CSPA, 2019, Section 71 (2) provides that the O.P.P. 
detachment board shall submit the estimates to every municipality that receives 
policing from the detachment along with a statement of the municipality’s share of 
the costs, which are to be determined in accordance with the regulations made by 
the Minister. 2019, c. 1, Sched. 1, s. 71 (2); 2023, c. 12, Sched. 1, s. 31 (2) and; 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to CSPA, 2019, Section 71 (3) Subject to subsection (4), the 
municipalities shall contribute their share of the costs to the O.P.P. detachment 
board’s budget in accordance with the estimates. 2019, c. 1, Sched. 1, s. 71 (3) 
and; 
 
WHEREAS it is deemed to be expedient to adopt the budget detailing the Superior 
East OPP Detachment Board’s 2025 annual estimates in accordance with 
legislation; and 
 
WHEREAS the Superior East OPP Detachment Board has prepared estimates of 
all sums required during the year for the purposes of the Superior East OPP 
Detachment Board for the year 2025 and; 
 
WHEREAS budget estimates were shared at the October 8, 2024 Superior East 
OPP Detachment Board meeting; 
 
NOWTHEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 2025 Budget Estimates for the 
Superior East OPP Detachment Board be hereby adopted, as attached hereto as 
Schedule “A”. 
CARRIED. 

Action: 
Final Budget to be shared with all member communities.  

(14) NEW BUSINESS 

14.1 Board Signing Authority (resolution) 
 

Moved by: J. Hemphill R. SEOPPB2024-14 
Seconded by: J. Hoffmann 

WHEREAS, the Superior East OPP Detachment Board is required to grant signing 
and authority to certain person(s) described hereunder; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Superior East OPP Detachment Board 
is hereby authorized and approved to authorize and empower the following 
individual to make, execute, endorse and deliver in the name of and on behalf of 
the Superior East OPP Detachment Board, but shall not be limited to, any and all 
written instruments, agreements, documents, execution of deeds, powers of 

https://www.canlii.org/en/on/laws/astat/so-2023-c-12/latest/so-2023-c-12.html


MINUTES 
Superior East OPP Detachment Board - Tuesday, November 12, 2024 

 

12-Nov-2024 

Page 5 of 6 

attorney, transfers, assignments, contracts, obligations, certificates and other 
instruments of whatever nature entered into by this Board effective November 12, 
2024 to November 14, 2026; 
 
AND FURTHERMORE, two (2) of the three (3) signatures are required to execute 
such documents referred too above. 
 

a. Chair – Paul Bernier 
b. Vice-Chair – Chris Buckell 
c. Treasurer, Municipality of Wawa – Manuela Batovanja 

CARRIED. 

Action: 
The Bookkeeper to arrange to open the Board bank account.  

 
14.2 Naming of the Superior East OPP Detachment Board (resolution) 

 
Moved by: J. Hemphill R. SEOPPB2024-15 
Seconded by: J. Hoffmann 

RESOLVED THAT as outlined in Ontario Regulation 135/24, this Board is an OPP 
Detachment Board in the geographical area serviced by the Superior East OPP 
Detachment area, and this Board confirms that it will be named and operating as 
the Superior East OPP Detachment Board. 
CARRIED. 

Action: 
Copy of the resolution to be shared with the OAPSB.  

 
14.3 2025 Meeting Schedule (resolution) 

 
Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-16 
Seconded by:  D. Jennings 

RESOLVED THAT the Superior East OPP Detachment Board does hereby adopt 
the 2025 Meeting Schedule as presented, attached hereto.  
CARRIED. 

Action: 
Meeting Schedule to be posted on the Municipality of Wawa website.  

 
14.4 Set Board Per Diem (resolution) 

 
Moved by: D. Jennings R. SEOPPB2024-17 
Seconded by: J. Hoffmann 

RESOLVED THAT per diem for the Superior East OPP Detachment Board 
members be set as follow: 

• Chair/Meeting Chair - $200 per meeting attended 
• All other voting Board Members - $150 each per meeting attended 

CARRIED. 

Action: 
Copy of the resolution be shared with the Board Treasurer.  

(15) CONSIDERATION OF BY-LAWS 

15.1 First, Second and Third Reading (resolution) 
 

Moved by: C. Buckell R. SEOPPB2024-18 
Seconded by: J. Hoffmann 



MINUTES 
Superior East OPP Detachment Board - Tuesday, November 12, 2024 

 

12-Nov-2024 

Page 6 of 6 

RESOLVED THAT the following by-laws be introduced and read a first, second 
and third time and finally passed and that the Chair and Secretary do sign and seal 
the same, any rule of this Council to the contrary notwithstanding: 
 

By-Law No. 2024-01 - to adopt Superior East OPP Detachment Board 
Policy No. SEOPPB-01: Code of Conduct. 
  
By-Law No. 2024-02 - to adopt the Superior East OPP Detachment 
Board Policy No. SEOPPB-02: Abuse, Harassment and Violence. 

CARRIED. 

Action: 
Minor changes in the Abuse, Harassment and Violence policy will be made to 
substitute wording to reflect Board Member versus employee. Policies and by-
law to be posted on the website. 

 
15.2 By-Law No. 2024-01 - to adopt Superior East OPP Detachment Board 

Policy No. SEOPPB-01: Code of Conduct. 
 

15.3 By-Law No. 2024-02 - to adopt the Superior East OPP Detachment 
Board Policy No. SEOPPB-02: Abuse, Harassment and Violence. 

 

(16) NEXT MEETING DATE 

16.1 Tuesday, February 11, 2025 at 4:00 p.m., 40 Broadway Avenue/Zoom 
 

(17) CLOSE OF MEETING 

17.1 Close of Meeting 
 

Moved by: J. Hoffmann R. SEOPPB2024-19 
RESOLVED THAT the meeting close at 5:17 p.m. 
CARRIED. 

Maury O'Neill,  
Acting Recording 

Secretary 

Paul Bernier, Chair 
 



  

  

NOTICE - CALL FOR RESOLUTIONS 
 

In preparation for the 2024 OAPSB AGM held at the 2025 Spring Conference we are now calling 

for board resolutions. 

Eligible resolutions must originate from member boards only (not municipalities/towns).  

For your convenience, please see attached Guidance document when proposing a Resolution. 

Please forward any Proposed Resolutions, in WORD format, to oapsb@oapsb.ca no later than the 

cut-off date of May 1, 2025. 

 

   
 

  

2025 OAPSB Spring Conference & AGM 
 

Register today! 

June 3-5, 2025 
 

Early Bird pricing expires April 1, 2025 
 

The in-person conference will take place at the Best Western Plus Lamplighter Inn & Conference 
Centre in London, Ontario. 
Member and Corporate sponsor opportunities are linked below. For more information or to 
partner please email Holly Doty at oapsb@oapsb.ca or by calling 1-800-831-7727. 

 

 

Guidance - Proposing Resolutions for the Annual 

General Meeting  

Email - 2025 OAPSB Call For Resolutions (Jan 30-25) Page 10 of 110

mailto:oapsb@oapsb.ca
mailto:oapsb@oapsb.ca
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/f785fc5f41e34049ac373571976f66a4
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/f785fc5f41e34049ac373571976f66a4
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/f785fc5f41e34049ac373571976f66a4
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/f785fc5f41e34049ac373571976f66a4


  

Peel Police Service Board Human Rights and Police 

Governance Report 
 

  

Please find attached a report written by Dr. Akwasi Owusu-Bempah and his team for Peel 

Regional Police Service and the Board of Directors with 91 recommendations towards 

improving equity, accountability and trust in policing.   

This report emphasizes the need for strategic planning, enhanced community engagement, and 

improved accountability mechanisms to address systemic challenges.  

Key recommendations include expanding human rights training, improving data transparency, 

and embedding equity focused policies across all areas of governance. 

The report is available on the Peel Police Service Board’s website and we will have a copy on 

our resource library as well.  

Rob Serpe has asked that we share this document with everyone to foster awareness and 

collaboration around these critical initiatives. 

 

 

 

 

 

Press Release  

PSB Response to GHR Report  

Police Governance and Human Rights Report  

Email - Peel Police Service Board Human Rights and Police Governance Rep... Page 11 of 110

https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbb4adad1a84455ca998b6bbd9e9ceaf
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbb4adad1a84455ca998b6bbd9e9ceaf
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbb4adad1a84455ca998b6bbd9e9ceaf
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/0b1a94b046554f97b34c868910bbae06
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/0b1a94b046554f97b34c868910bbae06
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/0b1a94b046554f97b34c868910bbae06
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/ef2d9ad69f5d4a50b8f91eef610518b1
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/ef2d9ad69f5d4a50b8f91eef610518b1
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/ef2d9ad69f5d4a50b8f91eef610518b1


  

  

NOTICE OF THE 2025 OAPSB ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING 
 

Pursuant to Section 11.04 of the General By-law of the Ontario Association of Police Service 

Boards, this is formal notice of the 2025 OAPSB Annual General Meeting of the Association's 

Membership. Please share this notice with all members of your board. 

The 2024 Annual General Meeting will be held on Tuesday, June 3, 2025 commencing at 

1:30pm, or shortly thereafter, for the purpose of: 

1. Confirming the Minutes of the 2023 Annual Meeting that was held on Monday, June 3, 

2024 at The Blue Mountain Resort and Conference Centre 

2. Receiving the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report for the 2024 Fiscal Year 

3. Appointment of an Auditor for the 2025 Fiscal Year 

4. Consideration of proposed Resolutions 

5. Ratification of the Board of Directors for the term 2024-2025 as submitted by the Zones 

Please note this AGM is restricted to voting delegates (PSB members) and their staff. Non-

members are not entitled to attend the meeting. 

During this AGM, voting delegates (PSB members) will have the ability to vote and interact 

with our Board of Directors during our designated Q&A periods. Questions must be submitted 

in writing at the beginning of the meeting. Board staff may listen to the meeting, but may not 

vote. 

   
 

Email - Notice of the OAPSB AGM (Jan 22-25) Page 12 of 110



  

2025 OAPSB Spring Conference & AGM 
 

Register today! 

June 3-5, 2025 
 

Early Bird pricing expires April 1, 2025 
 

The in-person conference will take place at the Best Western Plus Lamplighter Inn & 

Conference Centre in London, Ontario. 

Member and Corporate sponsor opportunities are linked below. For more information or to 

partner please email Holly Doty at oapsb@oapsb.ca or by calling 1-800-831-7727. 

 

 

Email - Notice of the OAPSB AGM (Jan 22-25) Page 13 of 110

mailto:oapsb@oapsb.ca


  

Important Industry Communications 
 

  

Today two important industry communications were released. 

The first, from the Solicitor General, is a news release: Ontario Launches 

New Tool to Better Monitor High-Risk Offenders on Bail. 

The second, from the Inspector General of Policing, was the Inspector 

General Memo #2: Changes to the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 

and Revised Advisory Bulletin 1.1. 

To ensure that all of our members received these communications they have 

been linked here for your reference. 

 

 

 

  

Connect With Us! 
 

 
 

 

Solicitor General News Release  

Inspector General of Policing Memorandum  

Inspector General of Policing Memorandum Advisory 
Bulletin 1.1  

Email - Important Industry Communications (Jan 16-25) Page 14 of 110

https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/61b3e9c17df947dfa4d4d6be053eb944
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/61b3e9c17df947dfa4d4d6be053eb944
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/61b3e9c17df947dfa4d4d6be053eb944
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/381dea867edb46c7b2b6f34e859210c7
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/381dea867edb46c7b2b6f34e859210c7
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/381dea867edb46c7b2b6f34e859210c7
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3ff2843a411845e58676ba4f849ca249
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3ff2843a411845e58676ba4f849ca249
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3ff2843a411845e58676ba4f849ca249
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3ff2843a411845e58676ba4f849ca249


 
 

  

Renew Your 2025 Membership Now! 
 

  

The OAPSB has launched their registration for 2025 Membership! All boards 

should have received an invoice directly to their email to renew. If you did not 

receive your invoice please reach out to Jennifer at membership@oapsb.ca 

for support. 

Membership renewals are due by January 31, 2025. 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OAPSB Discussion Groups Return in 2025! 
 
 

Email - The OAPSB Monthly Bulletin: January 2025 News and Updates (Jan 9... Page 15 of 110

mailto:membership@oapsb.ca


  

The OAPSB invites you to participate in our enriching discussion groups. By 

engaging in meaningful conversations with fellow community members, 

experts, and stakeholders, you can exchange valuable ideas and knowledge, 

share your insights, and learn from others' experiences. 

Staying informed is another significant benefit of joining our discussion 

groups. You'll be up-to-date with the latest developments, trends, and 

challenges in policing, gaining access to exclusive information and resources 

that can help you make informed decisions. 

  

 
https://oapsb.ca/events/oapsb-

drop-sessions/  
 

 
https://oapsb.ca/events/oapsb-

drop-sessions/  
  

   
 

 

 

Save the Date! 
 

Register for Admin & 

Municipal Staff Sessions  
Register for Board 

Member Sessions  

Email - The OAPSB Monthly Bulletin: January 2025 News and Updates (Jan 9... Page 16 of 110

https://oapsb.ca/events/oapsb-drop-sessions/
https://oapsb.ca/events/oapsb-drop-sessions/
https://oapsb.ca/events/oapsb-drop-sessions/
https://oapsb.ca/events/oapsb-drop-sessions/
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/841013d33a6e42d5a00eed2622b7f252


  

The 2025 OAPSB Spring Conference and Annual General Meeting will be 

held in London, Ontario at the Best Western Plus Lamplighter Inn & 

Conference Centre on June 3-5, 2025.  

You can book your hotel rooms now to ensure that you receive our special 

event pricing! 

Stay tuned for registration and program details coming shortly! 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book My Hotel Room 

Now  

Email - The OAPSB Monthly Bulletin: January 2025 News and Updates (Jan 9... Page 17 of 110

https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2a7f2dd5beb840f282e8b09f2126c1b1
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2a7f2dd5beb840f282e8b09f2126c1b1
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2a7f2dd5beb840f282e8b09f2126c1b1
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2a7f2dd5beb840f282e8b09f2126c1b1


Reminders and Resources 
 

All Chiefs Memos 
 

The following All Chiefs Memos were posted on the website throughout the 

month of December. 

• 24-0073 - All Chiefs Memo - Commissions under the Great Seal (Kings 

Commissions) under the Community Safety and Policing Act 2019 
• 24-0074 - All Chiefs Memo - Authorization for the Use of the TASER 10 

Conducted Energy Weapon 
• 24-0075 - All Chiefs Memo - Recreational Vehicle Driver Licensing 

Regulatory Updates 
• 24-0076 - All Chiefs Memo - Amendments to the Community Safety and 

Policing Act 2019 Through the Safer Streets Stronger Communities Act 

2024 
• 24-0077 - All Chiefs Memo - Amendments to Christophers Law (Sex 

Offender Registry) 2000 Through The Safer Streets Stronger Communities 

Act 2024 
• 24-0078 - All Chiefs Memo - Nishnawbe Aski Police Service Board Opt-In 

to the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 
• 24-0079 - All Chiefs Memo - Release of Use of Force Report Version 2.1 
• 24-0080 - All Chiefs Memo - 2025-26 to 2026-27 Mobile Crisis Response 

Team Enhancement Grant - Call for Applications 
• 24-0081 - All Chiefs Memo - Prohibition of Cannabis Cultivation for Non-

Medical Purposes in Home Child Care Settings in Force January 1, 2025 

If you have not yet had a chance to review them please click the link below to 

access them. 

Handy Links 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Connect With Us! 
 

      

  

 

 

 

  

 

Visit the 
OAPSB 
Website  

Ministry 
Contacts  

Board & Chiefs 
Memos  

Appointments 
and Vacancies  

Upcoming 
Events  

Access the 
CSPA Here  

Download the OAPSB 
Android App  

Download the OAPSB 
Apple App  

Email - The OAPSB Monthly Bulletin: January 2025 News and Updates (Jan 9... Page 18 of 110

https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/5c24244b4aa14687b2f326d85f92d4a2
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/a6f0b140618940608b8ddad457d9bf39
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/43ef176c68ab46648908e29940f68438
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/43ef176c68ab46648908e29940f68438
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/43ef176c68ab46648908e29940f68438
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/43ef176c68ab46648908e29940f68438
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/43ef176c68ab46648908e29940f68438
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2f11c1a797634b928826044aecef42be
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2f11c1a797634b928826044aecef42be
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2f11c1a797634b928826044aecef42be
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/2f11c1a797634b928826044aecef42be
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/22da29ac311647bba9b397cbc5a6b1fc
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/22da29ac311647bba9b397cbc5a6b1fc
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/22da29ac311647bba9b397cbc5a6b1fc
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/22da29ac311647bba9b397cbc5a6b1fc
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/1e60bba485c04ac89889c0ac8808589a
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/1e60bba485c04ac89889c0ac8808589a
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/1e60bba485c04ac89889c0ac8808589a
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/1e60bba485c04ac89889c0ac8808589a
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3dd32d273fab4374a5ae2be3af87b177
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3dd32d273fab4374a5ae2be3af87b177
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3dd32d273fab4374a5ae2be3af87b177
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/3dd32d273fab4374a5ae2be3af87b177
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/97f5dcc063a44dca81f0834ba882c311
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/97f5dcc063a44dca81f0834ba882c311
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/97f5dcc063a44dca81f0834ba882c311
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/97f5dcc063a44dca81f0834ba882c311
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbc96da8a4ad484badd2e2a5e0f50dc6
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbc96da8a4ad484badd2e2a5e0f50dc6
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbc96da8a4ad484badd2e2a5e0f50dc6
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/fbc96da8a4ad484badd2e2a5e0f50dc6
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/dc5800de6d1f4342a7c16daa17cf3c62
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/dc5800de6d1f4342a7c16daa17cf3c62
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/dc5800de6d1f4342a7c16daa17cf3c62
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/dc5800de6d1f4342a7c16daa17cf3c62


 

190 rue Brady Street Sudbury, Ontario P3E 1C7 ⚫ Tel/Tél: 705.675.9171 ext./poste 6136 ⚫ Fax: 705.674.7090 
        Address all correspondence to Board Administrator, Police Services Board ⚫ Prière d’adresser toute correspondence au Administrateur de conseil, Commission des services policiers 

Our Community – Our Commitment ⚫ Notre communauté – Notre engagement 

 

Greater Sudbury 

Police Service 

Board 

 

Commission  

de service de police 

de Grand Sudbury 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier's Office 
Room 281 
Legislative Building, Queen's Park 
Toronto, ON  
M7A 1A1 
 
 
 
December 11, 2024 
 
 
 
RE: Support for Bill 173 and declaring intimate partner violence an epidemic 
 
 
 
Dear Premier Ford,  
 
Earlier this year the Greater Sudbury Police Service Board passed a motion declaring 
Gender-Based Violence and Intimate Partner Violence (GBA and IPV) an epidemic in 
the City of Greater Sudbury. The Board also shared a letter with your office and various 
linked stakeholders notifying you of that motion and asking that the province join 
municipalities across Ontario in recognizing this deeply troubling and important issue in 
our communities by enacting Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024. 
 
The Board held its last meeting for 2024 today. Again, we reviewed statistics of 
continuing cases of GBV and IPV in our community. While our officers and police 
professionals do everything they can to support and make service connections for the 
brave citizens who make the sometimes-dangerous choice to report the abusive 
situations in their lives, we know there is more we can do to help eliminate this troubling 
social issue. 
 
The Board is aware this Bill is before the Standing Committee on Justice Policy. We are 
writing to state our fervent hope that the Committee recommends this Bill and that it 
receives and passes a Third Reading to receive Royal Assent. Should GBV and IPV be 
provincially recognized as the epidemic it is, it is our hope that more support can be 
offered to the police services, emergency services, social services, and health care 
agencies in our municipalities to meaningfully address this issue. 
 
We thank you for your attention to this important matter. 
 
 
 

Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-2... Page 19 of 110



 

190 rue Brady Street Sudbury, Ontario P3E 1C7 ⚫ Tel/Tél: 705.675.9171 ext./poste 6136 ⚫ Fax: 705.674.7090 
        Address all correspondence to Board Administrator, Police Services Board ⚫ Prière d’adresser toute correspondence au Administrateur de conseil, Commission des services policiers 

Our Community – Our Commitment ⚫ Notre communauté – Notre engagement 

 

Greater Sudbury 

Police Service 

Board 

 

Commission  

de service de police 

de Grand Sudbury 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Al Sizer, Chair 
 
Cc: 
 
Chief Sara Cunningham 
Members of the Board 
Dr. Mustafa Hirji, Medical Officer of Health, Public Health Sudbury & Districts  
Jamie West, MPP Sudbury 
France Gélinas, MPP Nickel Belt 
Charmaine Williams, Associate Minister of Women’s Social and Economic Opportunity 
Michael Kerzner, Minister of the Solicitor General 
Ontario Association of Police Service Boards 
OAPSB, Zone 1A 
Ontario Association of Chiefs of Police 
Sudbury Police Association 
Greater Sudbury Police Service Senior Officers’ Association 
Police Association of Ontario 
 

Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-2... Page 20 of 110



Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-2... Page 21 of 110



Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-2... Page 22 of 110



Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-2... Page 23 of 110



Email - Bill 173, Intimate Partner Violence Epidemic Act, 2024 (Dec 19-2... Page 24 of 110



  

 

Communication with the Minister - $77 Million 

Funding Announcement 
 

 

  

Dear Police Service Board and OPP Detachment Board members, 

  

I hope this message finds you well. Last week we communicated with The 

Honourable Michael Kerzner, Solicitor General of Ontario, regarding the 

recent announcement of $77 million in funding for municipalities policed by 

the Ontario Provincial Police (O.P.P.). 

  

While we acknowledge and appreciate the Province's investments in 

supporting OPP Policed Municipalities, this funding announcement has 

raised several concerns from small and mid-sized Municipal Police Service 

Boards. Specifically, there is a worry that this funding may unintentionally 

exacerbate existing challenges related to budget planning and the demands 

Email - Communication with the Minister - $77 Million Funding Announceme... Page 25 of 110



of providing adequate and effective policing services under the Community 

Safety and Policing Act (CSPA). 

  

In our letter, we emphasized the importance of understanding the broader 

context and implications of this funding decision. Here are some key points 

we addressed: 

• The O.P.P. has not received additional funding related to this 

announcement. 

• Municipal costs for O.P.P. policed communities are increasing. 

• The proposed one-time relief funding is intended to offset rising costs 

tied to police wage increases in the new collective bargaining 

agreement. 

We also highlighted the need for modernizing the grant funding process, 

securing equitable funding for CSPA implementation. Our goal is to ensure 

that all police services across the province can effectively meet evolving 

standards and expectations. 

We remain committed to advocating for the interests of all our members and 

working collaboratively with our sector partners and the Province for better 

outcomes. Your feedback and concerns are invaluable, and we will continue 

to represent your interests in ongoing discussions with the Ministry. 

Thank you for your dedication to providing exemplary police governance. 

Should you have any questions or require further information, please do not 

hesitate to reach out. 

 

  

 
 

 

View the Letter  

Email - Communication with the Minister - $77 Million Funding Announceme... Page 26 of 110

https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/86c1b391869c402abc8390dbf3f89bec
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/86c1b391869c402abc8390dbf3f89bec
https://ontarioassociationofpoliceservicesboards.growthzoneapp.com/ap/r/86c1b391869c402abc8390dbf3f89bec


 

 
Zone 1A Draft Meeting Minutes 

November 13, 2024 
Marriott Hotel, Sudbury 

  
Call to Order:  Bill Hagborg, Zone 1A Chair called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. 
 
Note Taker: Debbie Morrow 
 
Attendees:  
Bill Hagborg  - North Bay Police Service Board 
Marc Vaillancourt - North Bay OPP Detachment Board 2 
Douglas Gervais – LaCloche OPP Detachment Board  
Gisele Pageau – Nipissing West OPP Detachment Board 1 
Carlie Bigras – Nipissing West OPP Detachment Board 1 
Sue Perras – James Bay OPP Detachment Board 
Mike Bauman – James Bay OPP Detachment Board  
Pat Cliché – North Bay Police Services Board 
Kraymr Grenke – Timmins Police Services Board 
Al Sizer – Sudbury Police Services Board 
 
Guest Speakers:    
Lisa Darling – Executive Director OAPSB 
Tom Gervais- Zone 1A Police Service Advisor 
 
Adoption of Agenda: 
Due to time constraints Agenda items were delayed until next meeting. 
 
Lisa Darling, Executive Director of the OAPSB  

 Executive Director of the OAPSB since 2022; first full time employee. 

 Patrick Weaver is the Chair of the OAPSB Board of Directors (17 members on the board). 

 43 Section 31 Service Boards 

 47 OPP Detachment Boards 

 4 First Nation Boards 

 OAPSB Strategic Plan is on Member Website and Public Website. 

 Mandatory training for all board members handled by the Ontario Police College; there were technical difficulties and 
delays reported. 

 Remuneration is recommended to be $150 per board meeting. 

 OPP Detachment Boards have had board insurance challenges, naming of the boards in a professional/ community 
representative manner, provincial appointees and lack of support for newly setup OPP Detachment Boards with multiple 
communities. 

 OPP Detachment Boards require Terms of Reference, Police Record Checks for all board members, mandatory training, 
Oaths of Office and committees to support the Board community engagement prior to meeting. 

 
Pat Cliché was to give a presentation on Provincial Impaired Driving Initiative due to time constraints it was postponed. 
 
Tom Gervais, Zone 1A Police Service Advisor with the Inspector General 

 New OPP Detachment Boards had a leader in one of the communities; that leader has gone with their community’s new 
OPP Board.  This has led to some confusion with the organizing the new OPP Detachment Boards in other communities. 

 Police Service Advisors deal with Police/OPP Boards not Municipalities. 

 Recommended newly formed OPP Detachment Boards have 6 meetings per year. 

 There should be 87 OPP Detachment Boards in Ontario; only 50% have formed their OPP Detachment Boards. 
 
Financial Report provided by Administrator: 

Bank Balance as of November 12, 2024 $1,573.73. 
No outstanding invoices; conference fee of $150 paid by debit. 
Summary of bank activing for 2024 was sent to all board secretaries to be included with meeting package. 

 
 
 
 
 

PO Box 443, Temagami, ON P0H2H0       email: zone1a.coordinator@gmail.com  

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 27 of 110



New Business: 

 Zone 1A fees delayed until OAPSB guidelines are in place. 
 
  
Next Meeting Date: TBD  
 
Adjournment:  Bill Hagborg adjourned meeting at 4:55pm 
 
 
 

 

 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 28 of 110



1

Our purpose
Updates from 2024

 and our plan moving forward

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 29 of 110



44 municipal (all of them) 
74 Section 10 Boards 
4 indigenous – FN boards (out of the 9 current self administered police services )

2

Who is the OAPSB?
• The Association for Police Services Boards across Ontario.  
• The Face and Voice of Police Governance in Ontario” 

• Our Membership:
•  Municipal Police Services Boards (Section 31) – 43
• OPP Detachment Boards (current number 47)
•  First Nation Police Boards -4
• Associate members – stakeholder/partner organizations and 

government agencies  

 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 30 of 110



3

Board of Directors 

Board Chair

Zone Reps 7 
seats

Big Twelve 4 
seats

Toronto

First Nations 
1 seat

OPP Boards
Reps 4 seats

• 17 Member Board

• Serving members in good standing from 
Police Services Boards across Ontario

Chair – Patrick Weaver – Zone 6

 

 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 31 of 110



Staffing, image, accountability within the entire system

4

OAPSB Staff  
Executive Director (2022)
• First time the OAPSB has hired a permanent Executive Director 
• An important and necessary decision to strengthen the OAPSB’s position and 

collaborative efforts to provide the necessary supports to police services boards 
through the transitional years to the CSPA and beyond.
•  Aligns well with recognition of needed changes within policing and the importance 

of Police Governance to effect this change in Ontario and across Canada. 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 32 of 110



5

Collaborating for Community Safety
• Many issues facing police services boards have a similar impact on other sector partners.
• Where alignment – working with OACP, PAO, OPPA, CAPG and AMO
Collaboration in Advocacy
• Need to work together.  Respect each other’s positions and perspectives – but 

recognize our strength and abilities to make change together 
Collaboration in Expertise  
• Utilize the resources within our membership and partnerships to more effectively support 

each other 
 Collaboration in Education
• Members of OAPSB, PAO and OACP should know what is being shared with the other 

memberships on issues of mutual interest. (Alignment where possible)
• Clear expectations of each others roles, responsibilities and expectations

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 33 of 110



Our Vision Be the centre of excellence for police governance in the Province of 
Ontario. 
We will lead a community of practice designed to capitalize on the passion, expertise, 
and diverse perspectives of its members to ensure effective governance at every 
member police board. 

Our Mission Equip every police service and detachment board with the knowledge to 
govern effectively. We will achieve this through advocacy, expertise, and education

Our Values Values define organizational culture and communicate what we stand for; 
they guide our actions and are the motivation for every decision we make. 
We value…
 Integrity: Develop trusted leadership through ethical decision making and practices 
aligned with the values and needs of our membership and their communities. 
Passion: Inspire shared ownership through meaningful collaboration and engagement 
with our partners, membership and stakeholders. 
Community: Create the opportunity for a structured sharing of best practices and 
knowledge through a community of practice. 
Excellence through Diversity and Inclusion: Strive to create the environment for 

6

Strategic Plan 
2023-2025

“The Face and Voice of Police Governance in Ontario”

Our Vision: 
Be the Centre of Excellence for Police Governance in the Province of Ontario

Our Mission: 
Equip every police services board, First Nation board and detachment board with the tools required to govern  
effectively.  We will achieve this through advocacy, expertise and education.

We Value:
Leading with integrity, acting with passion, and collaborating with our community in the pursuit of excellence 
through diversity and inclusion. 

Being the voice of our 
members on issues 
impacting police 
governance and officer & 
public safety;

 

We are committed to:
Providing ongoing training and 
development for our members 
in collaboration with our 
stakeholders and partners.

Developing a repository of 
best practices and 
providing expert advice on 
board responsibilities 
under the CSPA;
 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 34 of 110



better discussions, decisions and outcomes for police governance in Ontario by 
embracing diversity and inclusion and imbedding it in our organizational strategic 
pillars.  

6

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 35 of 110



7

Updates from 2024
  

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 36 of 110



8

CSPA Unique Challenges 
All Boards 
• Mandatory training – delays and technical challenges

• Translation, First Nation Board modules 
• Thematic training – month to complete modules (municipal boards)

• Remuneration
• Policy Development
For OPP Detachment Boards 
• Insurance challenges 
• Naming convention of board
• Provincial appointments
• Lack of support for boards who were not previously members of OAPSB

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 37 of 110



9

Mandatory Training and transition supports

• OAPSB supporting boards through facilitating communication with 
the OPC helpdesk for both the roles and responsibility training and 
the thematic training.
• Met with individual boards and board staff to support through the 

transition to the CSPA,OPP Detachment Boards and the creation of FN 
Board
• Provided documentation and drop-in sessions for boards and staff to 

get the latest updates and ask any questions they may have.

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 38 of 110



10

Remuneration
• Provincial appointment only
• $150.00 per diem for Municipal Boards 
• No amount for OPP Detachment Boards, just language that they must 

be remunerated.
Language in legislation is vague
Policy on remuneration important
• What applies, what constitutes a daily per diem; what other 

remuneration applies (conferences – different rate?) 
• All members remunerated the same? (Community and Provincial 

Appts)

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 39 of 110



11

Municipal Boards & First Nation Boards

• Updating existing policies and creation of new policies
• A list on website outlining existing and new policies
• Some have hired consultants to support
• Boards have their policies posted on their websites
• Discussions with OACP to get support from their Policy Committee to 

provide a list of service policies/procedures that can be used to create 
the overarching policy requirements for boards

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 40 of 110



. Do Boards need to incorporate for any of the 
insurance options?  NO

By virtue of the Municipal Act and the legislation 
passed by the Province, municipalities do not have to 
incorporate either; they are incorporated by the Act 
and the Municipal Order creating the municipality

Sect 49 (1)  A police service board may contract, 
sue and be sued in its own name.

Section 67 (6) makes Section 49 applicable to 
Detachment Boards.

12

OPP Detachment Boards 
Insurance: 
No longer covered under the municipal insurance due to Detachment 
boards no longer meeting the definition of a “local board” in the 
Municipal Act. 
Worked this summer to come up with options
• Individual board options available on our website and through broker
• OAPSB group insurance, reduced fees – but must be a member to 

participate  $3,888 (inclusive of tax) 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 41 of 110



Application of other provisions

(6)  The following provisions apply to O.P.P. 
detachment boards, with necessary modifications, as 
if they were police service boards:

               1.           Section 33 (Appointment).

               2.           Subsections 35 (1) to (5) (Oath, training 
and conduct).

               3.           Section 36 (Election of chair).

               4.           Section 42 (Delegation).

               5.           Section 43 (Meetings).

               6.           Section 44 (When meetings may be 
closed to public).

               7.           Section 45 (Evidence of by-laws).

               8.           Section 46 (Rules and procedures).

               9.           Section 48 (Protection from personal 
liability).
2. Getting approval to move forward
Some Boards are comfortable with the administrator making this decision.
Some Boards will want to schedule a special meeting.  
 For that special meeting, Boards may need to take their oaths and be 
sworn in
 Have the discussion and decide on direction
 Then adjourn until insurance is enacted and the Board can determine 

12

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 42 of 110



next meeting and subsequent schedule
3. Is this a Reciprocal Policy?
No 

A reciprocal insurance policy is a type of insurance arrangement where a group of 
individuals, organizations, or businesses collectively self-insure and share the financial 
risks.

A reciprocal insurance exchange is owned and governed by its policyholders who are 
also insured, while a mutual insurance exchange is owned by policyholders who are 
not necessarily insured.

12

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 43 of 110



13

OPP Detachment Boards 
Naming Convention:
• When boards were asked to provide the makeup of their board(s), 

they were not asked to provide a name
• Legislation was written based on submissions
• Not professional 
• Not representative of the communities the board is accountable to. 
• Worked with Ministry to permit boards to use an “operating name”

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 44 of 110



14

Naming Convention for OPP Detachment 
Boards
• OPP has a logo developed to support the name of the Detachment and the 

name of the board.
• Clarity of both the Detachment servicing your communities by having a 

name that represents your catchment area
• For multiple boards – clarity on which board services your communities 

(not Detachment Board 1)
• Recommending: Include the name and the description in a local bylaw that 

includes how your board is defined in OReg 135/24 including the 
catchment area and what name you will be known as locally
• Communication on website and app. with greater details.

 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 45 of 110



15

Provincial Appointments 

• 40% completed
• Still areas – specifically in the North where there are not enough 

applicants to fill the positions.
• Requesting that you support/encourage community members to 

apply.
• Recognized this challenge – one of the factors in dropping the 

Provincial requirement from 40 to 20 percent. 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 46 of 110



16

Detachment Board – Brand new 
• Several communities – previous 5.1
• Not connected to anyone for communications
• OAPSB 
• LinkedIn
• Communication through OPP
• Public side of Website  
• Education and drop-in sessions that member and non-member boards and 

staff could attend for updates and ask questions.

• Still a gap.  As we move forward, we will assess the need to continue 
drop-in sessions. 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 47 of 110



Training on budget for both Municipal and Detachent Boards on website

17

Detachment Board – What to do first
• Term of Reference 
• Police Record Checks, 
• Mandatory Training
• Oaths of office
• Think about what kind of committees you might need to support your 

board and community engagement 
• Budget 
• Policies

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 48 of 110



Many of these are not right away policies but they should at some point be on a list.

18

What policies/ By-Laws should an O.P.P. Detachment Board have?

• Terms of Reference
• Naming Convention(if applicable)
• Finance Policy- related to estimates and how estimates are created, expense 

policy
• Local action plan
• Community, Media relations- communication
• Accessibility
• Donations/ Sponsorship
• Equity and Inclusion

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 49 of 110



19

• Hiring of Detachment Commander
• Detachment Commander performance monitoring
• Records management
• Complaints process (Complaints against Board members)- Inspectorate of 

Policing
• Freedom of Information
• Information sharing policy- Municipalities, First Nations, community 

partners
• Community Safety and well being- (Board’s involvement in the process)
• Legal indemnification

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 50 of 110



20

Fee Structure for 2025
Funding for Growth

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 51 of 110



It is simply an issue of capacity. 

21

The History of the OAPSB 
• The OAPSB received base funding from the Ontario government. This was 

stopped approximately 15 years ago. 
• Records retention schedule has resulted in very few records explaining the 

rationale for the fee structure.
• Fee structure has been set up to support events, but with minimal ongoing 

support from the OAPSB. 
• Resource limitations have impacted the ability of the OAPSB to maintain a 

strong voice at the table with our sector partner associations.
• Police Association of Ontario 
• Ontario Association of Chiefs of Police

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 52 of 110



We are immature in our existence compared to our two partner associations –  and 
we are the smallest 

The PAO has been in existence for 90 years, the OACP over 70 years and the earliest 
documents we could find on the OAPSB was in 1990. 
These organization probably did not start out a whole lot different than us with a 
limited mandate and limited resources. But as the needs of their membership grew  
so did their mandate and the required resources. 
One example of this is the PAO in approx. 2015.  The PAO recognized that to build the 
image and strength of its organization it needed to restructure it’s resources 

I think everyone would agree that both the PAO and the OACP  have strong voices in 
policing in the province of Ontario.   Everyone looks to the OACP and the PAO for 
their position on issue impacting our communities and our services. This did not 
happen overnight. Building trust and a reputation across the sector and beyond takes 
time and a plan and the resources to carry out that plan. 
In past years, and still today, there is an imbalance between the OACP, PAO and the 
Oapsb although I believe that the voice of the OAPSB on behalf of boards is becoming 
stronger towards that of our counterparts.  We are not there yet but I do believe that 

22

Three Pillar Associations in Policing Sector 
Leadership
OACP 

Founded in 1951  
membership is1200+ 
members open to 
senior ranking police 
officers or civilian 
equivalent, Staff 
Sergeants or 
equivalent civilian 
positions, as well as 
Corporate members 
working in law 
enforcement.

5, soon to be 6 full 
time staff members 

Employer
OAPSB 

Founded in 1933

is the official 
provincial 
representative body 
for over 28,000 sworn 
and civilian police 
personnel from 45 
police associations 
across Ontario.

Fulltime president 
and 5 full-time staff 
members

Founded in 1990?
Our membership 
includes police 
services boards and 
their members, 
police and law 
enforcement officials, 
and other persons 
involved in policing 
and public safety.
1 full-time staff 
member

Membership 
PAO

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 53 of 110



although we will never have the membership volume of the PAO, we absolutely can 
build a reputation and the capacity to stand with them an equal voice, witheau
I put the picture of the three-legged stool as I know this is an analogy used for 
sustainability in other sectors.  For stability of the stool you need three equally strong 
pillars (legs) working together (connected).  That is what our goal is for your 
association.

I said before you need time a plan and resources. 
We have a plan and currently we have been about to build up our resources 
temporarily to provide additional supports to membership boards . 
I am a believer in the build it and they will come philosophy.  The goal is to be the 
conduit for all boards to share information and the resource for all boards 

22

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 54 of 110



23

Recognizing the need for change within the OAPSB: 
• The past several years –Recognition of inconsistencies in knowledge due to 

a lack of coordination, cooperation and supports for police governance 
across the province. 
• Not effectively supporting our membership
• The fee structure did not permit the implementation of a consistent and 

collaborative approach to police governance. 
Difficult to commit without the long-term funding or revenue to support. 

• Daily business of the OAPSB should be covered by membership fees.
• Current Fee structure will leave the OAPSB at a deficit as the organization remodels 

to a “working association” for its members.  

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 55 of 110



24

Fee structure for Municipal Police 
Service Boards and First Nations 
Boards will continue to be based on 
force size  

OPP Boards status quo in 2024 and start new 
membership fee process based on per-property cost 
in January of 2025 (alignment with OPP billing)
Gives time to develop board structures and budgets
provides easy way for boards to determine fees year 
to year
Gives us enough time to have proper engagement 
and communication with all Detachment Boards 
prior to submitting budget for 2025. 

Recommended -Two separate fee structures

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 56 of 110



Number of boards at each level –  0 paying $759.00 (9 boards paying 1295 
and above    (27 to 54 % increase) 
 1-50  7 paying 1295.82
   3 paying 1579.30

51-100 – 6  21% increase
100-200 -7 24% increase
200-300 -5  25% increase
300 -14  58% increase 
Toronto 89% increase
 

25

Force Size 2025 Membership Dues

1- 50 uniform members   $3000.00

51-100   $4500.00

100-200   $6500.00

200-300  8500.00

Over 300  $10,500.00

Toronto  $15,000.00

Municipal and First Nations Boards  

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 57 of 110



Number of boards at each level –  0 paying $759.00 (9 boards paying 1295 
and above    (27 to 54 % increase) 
 1-50  7 paying 1295.82
   3 paying 1579.30

51-100 – 6  21% increase
100-200 -7 24% increase
200-300 -5  25% increase
300 -14  58% increase 
Toronto 89% increase
 

26

OPP Detachment Boards
Property Count based on OPP billing 
property count

2025 Membership Dues (.21 per 
property)

Majority of Detachment Board municipalities will see lower costs 
Note: There are a handful of boards whose costs will increase (county wide 
boards and group contracts) –
Phasing in for boards who require it will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 58 of 110



27

Where to find training and discussion materials

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 59 of 110



28

Email - Zone 1A Draft Minutes from November 13, 2024 (Nov 12-24) Page 60 of 110



 
 
 
 
 

SUPERIOR EAST OPP DETACHMENT BOARD 
 

DETACHMENT COMMANDER’S REPORT 
 

OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2024 
 
 
 

February 11, 2025 

 
 
 
 

                          

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 61 of 110



���������	�
���������� ���� ���� ������������������ ���� �!�� "��#��$� ���� �!�� "��#��$� ���� �!�� "��#��$�%&�&'�()*+�, - 		 . 	/..0.1 / 		2�)	%&�&'�()*+�, 3 		 /4 5-061 3 	430617��8���,�
&�&9���)', 3. 		 :3 	-061 53 	/-031;<=>? @A BB @C CDCE FF BCGDHE
I<=<J�KLMNO?L�P<??NQN<RQ�ST�;TUL

VW
��� ���� ���� ������������������ ���� �!�� "��#��$� ���� �!�� "��#��$� ���� �!�� "��#��$�%&�&'�()*+�, X 		 . 	/..0.1 4 		2�)	%&�&'�()*+�, 44 		 43 /60-1 X3 -50417��8���,�
&�&9���)', -33 		 -3/ 	-0X1 -X- 	/40Y1;<=>? Z[G BB ZC@ BCD\E [@Z B\D[E
��������	�
�������

]̂]_]̀]
a]

bcdcefghijk lmgnbofghijk pjmqrosctcougekv wx
yz

w z {z|}~� ]̂̂^ ]̂̂� ]̂̂_

���������������������������������������������� �¡��¢�£��¤���¥�������������� �¡��¦§�̈©��ª�¤���«�������������� �¡��¬���̈�®���¤���̄�������������� �¡��¢§������°��¤����������������� �¡��¢�£��±ª����̈�©�¤���²�������������� �¡��³�©�®���¤���́����µ��¶�¢�¦·�¬�����³¶¤���́¥���¦¬ ��� ��¦����³¶¤���́«���¦¬ ��� ���̧�µ¢��³¶¤��́����±�¦¬���¦�¡�¶�³¶����������� �¹����������º»ºº»�¼�½¾

¿ÀÀ�ÁL=>OMÂLR=�Ã<>JÄ�ÅLU<J=P<??NQN<R�ÅLU<J=NRÆ�ÇTQ=LÂ¿O=<SLJ�B�ÁLOLÂSLJ�[A[H

 ������� ��
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 62 of 110



�
������� 	
�
�������� 	
�
��������
�������� �����
������������� ����
����������  �!���"�� ����
����������  �!���"�� ����
����������  �!���"��#$## % && $ && $ &&#$#' $ &($$)$* $ && $ &&#$#% # && $ && ( &&����� +,++� +,+-� +,+.�/0112345 ' $ #/0112345�*�678451 && &($$)$* &&�39:;8<:12 ( $ $�39:;8<:12�*�678451 && &($$)$* &&=><?7?>�;@59 $ $ (=><?7?>�;@59�*�678451 && && &&A3>2>3B1 $ $ $A3>2>3B1�*�678451 && && &&C?/18:D1>:��� ( $ $C?/18:D1>:�����?�* && &($$)$* &&

EFGFHIGIJK�IL�MJGFNOPJLG�QRJF�S�TLNIUJLGKV<:?D1;�&��1<1WD1;���� 	
�
�������� 	
�
��������
�������� �����
������������� X��
�
�YZ�["�� \���������  �!���"�� X��
�
�YZ�["�� \���������  �!���"�� X��
�
�YZ�["�� \���������  �!���"��#$## $ # && $ $ && $ $ &&#$#' $ $ &($$)$* $ $ && $ $ &&#$#% $ $ && $ $ && ( ( &&������� 	
�
�������� 	
�
��������
�������� �����
������������� X��
�
�YZ�["�� \���������  �!���"�� X��
�
�YZ�["�� \���������  �!���"�� X��
�
�YZ�["�� \���������  �!���"��#$## $ % && $ $ && $ $ &&#$#' $ $ &($$)$* $ $ && $ $ &&#$#% $ # && $ $ && ( ( &&

]RIPFR̂�_F̀KFH�EFNGaRK�IL�EFGFH�baGaR�cJOINHJ�_aHHIKIaLK
V<:?D1;�&��1<1WD1;

defghhijklm�njopqrsphim�tuv wdww wdwx wdwy
z z{{ {{{ z{{ {{z {{ |}~~������������~���������������������~��|~���~��

V<:?D1;�&��1<1WD1;�� +,++� +,+-� +,+.�/0112345 ( $ (/0112345�*�678451 && &($$)$* &&�39:;8<:12 $ $ $�39:;8<:12�*�678451 && && &&=><?7?>��;@59 $ $ (=><?7?>��;@59�*�678451 && && &&A3>2>3B1 $ $ $A3>2>3B1�*�678451 && && &&C?/18:D1>: ( $ $C?/18:D1>:��?�* && &($$)$* &&

V<:?D1;�&��1<1WD1;���� 	
�
�������� 	
�
��������
�������� �����
������������� ����
����������  �!���"�� ����
����������  �!���"�� ����
����������  �!���"��#$## # && $ && $ &&#$#' $ &($$)$* $ && $ &&#$#% $ && $ && ( &&

����h����������� �¡���¢£¤¥¦§�̈©ªª�«�¬®̄°±©°�̄²¬³�¤́�µ�¦¶�̈©·ª�«�¬®̄°±©°�̄²¬³�¤̧¹�º»£�¼¦¶�̈©½ª�«�¬®̄°±©°�̄²¬³�¤¾�¿¡£º�À¡£¦¶�̈©Áª�«�¬®̄°±©°�̄²¬³�¤́¹ �£�° Â£¿¦¶�̈©̈ª«�¬®̄°±©°�̄²¬³�¤́�µ��Ã¼¡ � º�»¦¶�̈©Äª�«�¬®̄°±©°�̄²¬³�¤Å�»£À£�¦¶�̈©Æª�«�Ç°È¬́ ±̧É�¾©¬̄�ÅÈ¶�̈©Æ·�«�̧¾²®�̄²�̧°̄ �̄ÅÈ¶�̈©Æ½�«�̧¾²®�̄²�©Ê±Ḉ �̄ÅÈ¶©̈Æ̈�«�Ã±̧¾±®±̧©³̄È�ÅÈ����h������ �Ë��h�������ÌÍÌÌÍ�Î�ÏÐ

Ñ]]�MJGFNOPJLG�ÒaFRU�ÓJÔaRG_aHHIKIaL�ÓJÔaRGILÕ�Ö̂KGJPÑNGa×JR�S�MJNJP×JR�ØÙØÚ
EFGFHIGIJK�IL�MJGFNOPJLG�QRJF�S�]JRKaLK�ÛIHHJU

²¿£�¤¥¦§�²��
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 63 of 110



�����������	
����
���	��������������������������


��������������
��������
�������� �!���"���

#$##%%�%&'()*+ ,-../012 34-506./ ,.578.97 :0;765<7./=>? ?> @ >=AB ?? A ?=?@ ?C D EFGHI $#$$ $#$J $#$K

LM!NOPQ RSRR RSRT RSRUVWPQXOVPYOXZQ[\ ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO�c�d"defg�c�h��i�e M�fjjd� kll   klm  nopq rnp nosqc�d"defg�c�h��M�fjjd� kk   kn  lopq kt uonqvdwxyfz�M�fjjd��{�� p|pss   p|mtr knokq p|mts  no}q~d�����~d��e���{�� st   tn  tno}q pt  ukorq��x����d�gf�d�e� pkr   }ps }mopq pkl  }ponq�	��� ����� �� ����� ����� ����� ������������� �!���"���
#$##K##%%�%&'()*+ �02��5���65��0<��<7 �6040159���/.��1��65��0< �7�.6��0�9570�1; �6040159���/.��65��0< �0���6��0<.1<.��<7

E@� ?E� C= =? ?CEAD ?=C EA ?C ?AEE@ ?�= E= =C CFGHI $#$$ $#$J $#$K
�������� �!���"���NOPQ RSRR RSRT RSRUVWPQXOVPYOXZQ[R � ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO�¡¢��hdew }np   }rk trotq }pu  }}opq¡�f���g� u   r snonq l }mokq£"¢fd��h pn   pp pnonq ps }rotq!d���f���h n   p   t }nnonqLM!NOPQ RSRR RSRT RSRUVWPQXOVPYOXZQ[R � ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO�¡¢��hdew r}l   p|s}p lsolq p|snr  ponq¡�f���g� tp   }s  }}okq ss mtotq£"¢fd��h tu   tm mokq sl }molq!d���f���h p   } pnnonq t unonq

�������� �!���"���NOPQ RSRR RSRT RSRUVWPQXOVPYOXZQ[\ ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO� ]̂ Ô_̀O�VZa_Y� b�VWP_XO�c�d"defg�c�h��i�e M�fjjd� ptm   p}s  pnopq pm} skomqc�d"defg�c�h��M�fjjd� }p   ps  ttotq }s rposqvdwxyfz�M�fjjd��{�� tum   trl uolq ttu  ppokq~d�����~d��e���{�� ps   pr }posq s  rkouq��x����d�gf�d�e� s}   tr  ppolq t}  ptouq�	��� ¤�� �� ¤�� ����� ¤�� ����
¥���¦����������§	��
���̈	�����	�
��©�����������ª����¥��	«�����¦����«�������

¬®̄°±²�®³́µ¶·̧�¹º»»�¼�½¾¿ÀÁÂºÁ�ÀÃ½Ä�µÅ̄ Ǣ·Ç�¹ºÈ»�¼�½¾¿ÀÁÂºÁ�ÀÃ½Ä�µÉÊ̄ËÌ́̄Í·Ç�¹ºÎ»�¼�½¾¿ÀÁÂºÁ�ÀÃ½Ä�µÏÐ²́Ë̄Ñ²́·Ç�¹ºÒ»�¼�½¾¿ÀÁÂºÁ�ÀÃ½Ä�µÅÊ±°́�Á±Ó́Ð·Ç�¹º¹»¼�½¾¿ÀÁÂºÁ�ÀÃ½Ä�µÅ̄ Ǣ�ÔÍ²±®±Ë̄Ì·Ç�¹ºÕ»�¼�½¾¿ÀÁÂºÁ�ÀÃ½Ä�µÖÌ́Ñ́°·Ç�¹º×»�¼�ØÁ¾Ù½ÅÂÉÚ�Ïº¾½À�ÖÙÇ�¹º×È�¼�ÉÏÃ¿¬ÀÃ¾�ÉÁÀÀ�ÖÙÇ�¹º×Î�¼�ÉÏÃ¿¬ÀÃ¾�ºÛÂØÅÀ�ÖÙÇ¹º×¹�¼�ÔÂÉÏÂ¿ÂÉºÄÀÙ�ÖÙÃÐ́ µ̄¶·̧�Ã¬¬ÜÝÞ*ßÝàá âãÝÞ*ßÝàâàá�äåääåÜæ�çè
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 64 of 110



����������	�
�����	 ��������������������������������������	����������������������������������

 !"#$%!&�"!'()*+,�-.//�0�123456.5�4718�)9#:#+;�-.</�0�123456.5�4718�)=>#?@(#A+;�-.B/�0�123456.5�4718�)C!D&(?#E&(+;�-.F/�0�123456.5�4718�)9>%$(�5%G(D+;�-.-/0�123456.5�4718�)9#:#�HA&%"%?#@+;�-.I/�0�123456.5�4718�)J!@(E($+;�-.K/�0�L52M196=N�C.214�JM;�-.K<�0�=C73 472�=544�JM;�-.KB�0�=C73 472�.O6L94�JM;-.K-�0�H6=C636=.84M�JM7D(#)*+,�7  PQRSTQUV WXQRSTQUWUV�YZYVZPY�[\

]̂_̀abc�d�eb̂bfabcghij klkm klknopqh orsit� u�vwixyh� orsit� u�vwixyh�z{c|}|~ ��� d����� ��� d�������eghij klkm klknopqh orsit� u�vwixyh� orsit� u�vwixyh�z{c|}|~ ����� ������ ����� d�����]̂_̀abc�d�eb̂bfabc
�������

���S����S��������� ���� ����
��� �� ¡¢£¤ ¥¦§̈©̈ª

«¬®̄��°±®�®°²³́®²µ¶�·̧·®¹�º»·�µ¬�¼½¾¾̧�²¹¿¾®¹®µ®À�½µ²¾�±®�®µÀ�¬¼�ÁÂÁÁÃ�±®Ä®¼¬Ä®�À»»�²·�¬µ¾̧�»Å»²¾»Æ¾®�Æ®¶²µµ²µ¶�²µ�ÁÂÁÇÈ�É�Ê±»µ¶®�²µ�ÁÂÁÇ�¹»̧�»¿¿®»Ä�±²¶±®Ä�²µ�±²·�Ä®¿¬Ä�À½®�¬�±®�²µ³¬¹¿¾®®�ÁÂÁÁ�À»»È

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 65 of 110



�
������� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������ ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ������������� �!"# $ %% $ %% $ %%&'(")�&**"+ "#�,-.#�+/��"-'( $ %% $ %% $ %%0''"�1'"!�2.)!") $ %% $ %% 3 %%4"5.-6�&**"+ "# 37 %% 89 83:3; 88 %<:9;0##-.6'#=>�)"-)��?"6-'"!�&**"+ "# @7 %% @A %<:A; A< %9B:A;&**"+ "#�?"#.6'�+/��+�'("��"1)�C-'��+��*>)""!�� < %% 9 %8A:$; 3 %BB:D;?�EE")F $ %% 8 %% $ %3$$:$;&'(")�&**"+ "#�G+C�6C�+/�H��6"+ "��)�'("��()"-'�*�H��6"+ " A$ %% D3 <8:$; A7 %3B:7;&**"+ "#��+�?"6-'��+�'��4"5.-6�4")C� "# $ %% $ %% $ %%IJKLM NOP QQ NRS NTUOV NTW QPXUXV

YZJM[\K�]̂Z_[

àbcdebf̀fg�hihhijk�lmj̀bcdebf̀fgnopqrsot�pouvwxyz�{|}}�~�������|�������w�q�qy��{|�}�~�������|�������w��q��vq�y��{|�}�~�������|�������w�o�tv�q�tvy��{|�}�~�������|�������w��srv��s�v�y��{|{}~�������|�������w�q�q���tsps�q�y��{|�}�~�������|�������w�o�v�vry��{|�}�~������������|��������{|���~�����n�������������{|���~�����n����|���������{|�{�~���������|������

& '�E")%�" "�E")���� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������ ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ������������� �!"# $ %% $ %% $ %%&'(")�&**"+ "#�,-.#�+/��"-'( $ %% $ %% $ %%0''"�1'"!�2.)!") $ %% $ %% 3 %%4"5.-6�&**"+ "# B %% < %99:9; B A$:$;0##-.6'#=>�)"-)��?"6-'"!�&**"+ "# 8< %% 3< %<3:D; 33 %83:<;&**"+ "#�?"#.6'�+/��+�'("��"1)�C-'��+��*>)""!�� $ %% 3 %% $ %3$$:$;?�EE")F $ %% 3 %% $ %3$$:$;&'(")�&**"+ "#�G+C�6C�+/�H��6"+ "��)�'("��()"-'�*�H��6"+ " 3< %% 39 %D:3; 8$ A9:@;&**"+ "#��+�?"6-'��+�'��4"5.-6�4")C� "# $ %% $ %% $ %%IJKLM SS QQ TT QPXU�V TR NXUPV

��vqwxyz��nn

�  �¡[KL¢£_[\K�¤JL̂¥�¦[§ĴK¦[¢Ĵ¥̈�©L\Lª[_[\K�«¬̈K[_�¢KJ[̂�Q�¡[¢[_[̂�P�PS

& '�E")�%��" "�E")

®̄
°®°̄
±®±̄²³́µ¶·

¹̧¹º»¼¹º½�¾¿À½ºÀ ÁºÂ¿ÃÄ�ÅÆÆºÇÈºÉ Ȩ́ÉÃ¿Ä¹ÉÊËÌÀºÃÀ»ÍºÄÃ¹º½�ÅÆÆºÇÈºÉ ÅÆÆºÇÈºÉ�ÍºÉ¿Ä¹ÌÇÎÌÇ�¹Ïº�Ðº¼ÀÌÑÃ¹ÌÒÇÒÆ�ËÀºº½Ò» ÍÒÓÓºÀÔ Å¹ÏºÀ�ÅÆÆºÇÈºÉÕÇÑÒÄÑÌÇÎ�ÖÌÒÄºÇÈºÒÀ�¹Ïº�×ÏÀºÃ¹�ÒÆÖÌÒÄºÇÈº
Ø

ÙÚ
ÛÚ

Ú
ÛÚ

Û Û
ÛÜ

Û Ø ÛÛ
ÙÝ

Þßàá ±®±± ±®±â ±®±ã
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 66 of 110



�
������� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������ ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ������������� ! "" # !$$%$& $ "!$$%$&'�()*�) +�, -(� .! "" // "01%$& #. "01%2&�3(4-�56(��78$$$ #$ "" #$ $%$& !. "!8%$&�3(4-�9 +(��78$$$ :# "" 1. "8%/& 8/ "0.%:&;���(��<� =��)44<>*< ?�@-�A( �B��+� 0 "" : #$$%$& 2 "00%0&C�)D+ 01 "" /0 !0%#& /0 $%$&E<�>3<(4 :! "" 2: "#/%#& 0: "/0%8&FGHIJ KLM NN OPQ NLKRKS LTM NKORLS

UVWXYZW[U[\�]̂]]̂_̀�abU_WXYZW[U[\cdefghdi�edjklmno�pqrr�s�tuvwxyqx�wzt{�l|f}fn~�pq�r�s�tuvwxyqx�wzt{�l��f��kf�n~�pq�r�s�tuvwxyqx�wzt{�l�d�ik�f�ikn~�pq�r�s�tuvwxyqx�wzt{�l|�hgk�xh�k�n~�pqprs�tuvwxyqx�wzt{�l|f}f���iheh�f�n~�pq�r�s�tuvwxyqx�wzt{�l�d�k�kgn~�pq�r�s��xu�t|y����qutw���~�pq���s���zvcwzu��xww���~�pq���s���zvcwzu�q�y�|w���~pq�p�s��y��yvy�q{w����

5>-��(��"��(>(��(����� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������ ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ������������� $ "" $ "" $ ""'�()*�) +�, -(� !! "" !! $%$& 8 "8/%8&�3(4-�56(��78$$$ 8 "" ! "1$%$& / 0$$%$&�3(4-�9 +(��78$$$ !1 "" 1 "88%2& : !#%8&;���(��<� =��)44<>*< ?�@-�A( �B��+� # "" # $%$& ! "8$%$&C�)D+ / "" 1 !$$%$& : !#%8&E<�>3<(4 #8 "" !# "8#%$& . "/!%.&FGHIJ M� NN QO NK�RQS K� NLMRPS
��G���H�������

z�kflmno�zcc

������HI ¡��¢H�£GI�¤�¥��G�H¥� G�¤¦�§I¢Ï���¢H�©�¦H��� HGª���N��� ��ª���O«OQ

5>-��(��"��(>(��(�

¬
®¬®̄
¬̄°±²³́µ

¶·̧¹º�¹»¼�½»¾̧· ¿À̧Á¾�ÂÃ̧·�Ä¬¬¬ ¿À̧Á¾�Å»¼̧·�Ä¬¬¬ ÆÇÈȨ̀ÈÈÉÇ»Ê¿·¹ÁÁÉËÌÍ¾ÇÎ̧»�ÏÇÇ¼È Ð·¹Ñ¼ ÒÉÈËÀȨ́Á
ÓÓ Ô

ÓÕ

Ö ×

ÖÔ
ÓÓ

Ó
Õ Ö Õ ÓÖ

Ô × Ø
Ó

Ø Ù
ÚÛÜÝ ¬̄̄¯ ¬̄̄Þ ¬̄̄ß

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 67 of 110



�
������� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������ ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ���������������� �! " ## $ #%%&'( ' %)&)(*+,-- ./ !0 1 ## $ #$2&"( 1 1%&)(345�+6,6 �!�7��+�89.6 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��������� �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��< �6+ ;96 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��=,>� ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��345�+6,6 �!�7�?@5�+6,6 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ���+�89.6 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##A6B�+�:,!!,; ��C �>,6 �!� ) ## ) ## ) ##�DEFG HI JJ K JLMNMO HP IQNLO

RSEDTUV�J��USUWTUV���� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������ ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ���������������� �! 2 ## X #%)&)( 2 X))&)(*+,-- ./ !0 2 ## ) #X))&)( 2 ##345�+6,6 �!�7��+�89.6 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��������� �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��< �6+ ;96 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��=,>� ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ��345�+6,6 �!�7�?@5�+6,6 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##:,!!,; ���+�89.6 �! ) ## ) ## ) ##A6B�+�:,!!,; ��C �>,6 �!� ) ## ) ## ) ##�DEFG Y JJ H JZLNMO Y PMMNMO
�V[\�]V̂WU

_̀ abcde�f�gd̀dhcde
ijkj
ljmnopqr ijii ijis ijik

tt uvuu
wx

uxtytt yxtyz{|}~�� ��|�~��� ���~�
_̀ abcde�f�gd̀dhcdeC �>,6 �!�+5 2)22� 2)2�� 2)2$� �DEFG���, >9+��6�:�45>� �� �1 2) �L���,9>6��� +�,+4��>,6�8A--�!.�� 2$ X$ XX Y�A6B�+�A--�!.��3!��>� !0C �>�!.���+�6B�*B+�,6��-C �>�!.� X$ X� 2) YZ� �.B �- 2% X2 1 YY�+�� !. ,>=6,696�� X$ X' X) YM

RSEDTUV�J��USUWTUV
j�imnopqr �|��~��{|� �����{��{��

y y� y y
���� ijii ijis ijik

R  ��UEFS¡WU¢E�£DFV¤�¥U¦DVE¥USDV¤§�̈F¢F\UWU¢E�©ª§EUWRSEDTUV�J��USUWTUV�QMQY

«¬®̄°¬±�¬²³́µ¶·�̧¹ºº�»�¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹À�¿Â¼Ã�́Ä®Å®¶Æ�̧¹Çº�»�¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹À�¿Â¼Ã�́ÈÉ®ÊË³®Ì¶Æ�̧¹Íº�»�¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹À�¿Â¼Ã�́Î¬Ï±³Ê®Ð±³¶Æ�̧¹Ñº�»�¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹À�¿Â¼Ã�́ÄÉ°̄³�À°Ò³Ï¶Æ�̧¹̧º»�¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹À�¿Â¼Ã�́Ä®Å®�ÓÌ±°°Ê®Ë¶Æ�̧¹Ôº�»�¼½¾¿ÀÁ¹À�¿Â¼Ã�́Õ¬Ë³Ð³̄¶Æ�̧¹Öº�»�×À½Ø¼ÄÁÈÙ�Î¹½¼¿�ÕØÆ�̧¹ÖÇ�»�ÈÎÂ¾«¿Â½�ÈÀ¿¿�ÕØÆ�̧¹ÖÍ�»�ÈÎÂ¾«¿Â½�¹ÚÁ×Ä¿�ÕØÆ¹̧Ö̧�»�ÓÁÈÎÁ¾ÁÈ¹Ã¿Ø�ÕØÂÏ³®́µ¶·�Â««ÛÜÝÞßàÝáÛáâ ÛãÝÞßàÝáÛáâ�äåääåÜæ�çè

�D¦�P�é̂DGFÊD¢��ª¦U§ �D¦�L�é̂DGFÊD¢�êVD[¦§

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 68 of 110



� ������� 	
		 	
	� 	
	���������������� ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ������������� !"" ## !$% !&"' !(( #"&$')�*�+�,�-��. % ## / ## 0 ((&"'1 23�+�,�-��. (4 ## 0" #!"&5' /( #/(&$'� 63678��99�7:�. /! ## ;5 #;;&(' ;4 ;%&$'<=>?@ ABB CC ADE CEFBG AHD CIJFDG

K>LMN�ONPQM�KRRSNNMTRMU �:�2V� �#���:�WV� ���� 	
		 	
	� 	
	���������������� ������� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� ������������� 55 ## 5; #5&0' ;0 #5%&0')�*�+�,�-��. % ## ! ## % #!%%&%'1 23�+�,�-��. !5 ## !( !5&/' !% #/"&0'� 63678��99�7:�. " ## " %&%' 4 ;$&('<=>?@ DX CC DD IFXG EE CHHFHG
�:�2V� �#���:�WV� 

YZY
[Y\Y
]Y_̂̀abc

defgh igj�kelemegn ohpq�kelemegn rhsqstu�dvvgtwgn

xx
yx z

x{

y
y| z

{}
y~ ����� [Y[[ [Y[\ [Y[]

K����M>?RLQMT>��=?N���M�=N>�MR=N�U��?T?�MQMT>���U>MQKR>=�MN�C��MRMQ�MN�AJAE

������������������������� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��̈�©��ª���«���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��¬�®̄��°�ª���±���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��²�³��®�́���ª���µ���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��̈����¤�¶�³�ª������� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��̈�©��·°����®�̄�ª���̧���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��¹�̄�́���ª���º����»¤¡¼ ̈ ¥¬½�²�¡ £�¹¼ª���º«���¬²¦¢�£¦¡�¬¤££�¹¼ª���º±���¬²¦¢�£¦¡��¾¥»̈ £�¹¼ª��º����·¥¬²¥¢¥¬�§£¼�¹¼¦³�������¦��¿ÀÁÂÃÄÁÅ¿ÅÆ ¿ÇÁÂÃÄÁÅ¿ÅÆ�ÈÉÈÈÉÀÊ�ËÌ
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 69 of 110



�
������� 	
		 	
	� 	
	������������������ �� ��������� �� ��������� �� �������������� ! "#$%& '' "($(& )$)& )*$+& *$,&-.�/�.!0 1*$%& '' 1)$)& #,$+& 1"$,& ',$(&2!3�. ))$"& '' )"$1& '*$"& )#$*& ',$"&�.456 (#$)& '' )"$%& '7$"& "7$(& '*1$*&8�9�:!;!4!�6 � � *++$+& '' )+$+& '1+$+&-.�<�:!;!4!�6 ))$,& '' (#$+& %$1& )7$*& '"$,&�.�<� 5�2==� >�6 (+$#& '' )#$#& '"$"& (#$*& **$"&

?@ABCBDEA�FBGA 2>!�H�.�'���>�IH�.���� 	
		 	
	� 	
	��� ��������� �� ��������� �� �������������� ! 7#$7& '' 7+$7& ',$)& "#$"& 1*$7&-.�/�.!0 1#$*& '' *($+& '*"$%& 11$(& 1+$+&2!3�. )*$)& '' )*$+& '*$*& "1$+& '**$*&�.456 *++$+& '' *++$+& +$+& "%$+& '1%$+&8�9�:!;!4!�6 � � *++$+& '' � '*++$+&-.�<�:!;!4!�6 (1$(& '' *++$+& "$"& "+$+& '#+$+&�.�<� 5�2==� >�6 )%$"& '' *++$+& *7$"& ))$(& '**$*&
2>!�H�.�'���>�IH�.

JKLJK
MJKNJK
OJKPJJK

QRSTUTVWSXTYS

Z[\]̂_̀ ab\ĉb̀d èf̂b gbhij k̂l�m̀ǹh̀ ĵ ab\o�m̀ǹh̀ ĵ gb[o[_i�epp̂_q̂j

rstru
vstwu

xwtxu wyytyu zvtzu x{t|u
rytru

wztyu

wyytyu wyytyu wyytyu
|st|u

vvtzu
|vtyu |{tyu |ytyu xxtzu}~�� LJLL LJL� LJLM

�����AGBE��ADG���BC��FA��CGFAE�C����BDB�A�ADG����GA��EG��AC����AEA��AC�����

��������������� ¡�¢£¤¤�¥�¦§̈©ª«£ª�©¬¦��®�̄� °�¢£±¤�¥�¦§̈©ª«£ª�©¬¦��²³�́µ��¶ °�¢£·¤�¥�¦§̈©ª«£ª�©¬¦��̧�¹��́�º�� °�¢£»¤�¥�¦§̈©ª«£ª�©¬¦��®³����ª�¼�¹ °�¢£¢¤¥�¦§̈©ª«£ª�©¬¦��®�̄��½¶����́�µ °�¢£¾¤�¥�¦§̈©ª«£ª�©¬¦��¿�µ�º�� °�¢£À¤�¥�Áª§Â¦®«²Ã�̧£§¦©�¿Â°�¢£À±�¥�²̧¬̈�©¬§�²ª©©�¿Â°�¢£À·�¥�²̧¬̈�©¬§�£Ä«Á®©�¿Â°¢£À¢�¥�½«²̧«̈«²£©Â�¿Â¬¹���� ¡�¬��ÅÆÇÈSÉÇÊÅÊË ÅÌÇÈSÉÇÊÅÊË�ÍÎÍÍÎÆÏ�ÐÑ
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 70 of 110



�
������� 	
		 	
	� 	
	���������������� ������ ��������� ������ ��������� ������ ��������������� !" ## $% #%&'"( $! #)')(*+�,�+ - !. ## !% #$)'/( !$ #.')(0 1�+ & ## $" $""'"( $/ /"'"(�+234 " ## " ## $ ##5�6�7 8 2 �4 " ## " ## " ##*+�9�7 8 2 �4 % ## " #$""'"( $ ##�+�9��3�0::��;�4 " ## " ## " ##<=>?@ AB CC DB CEFGHI AD EFGDI

JKL=MKNON 0; �P�+�#���;�QP�+

RS
TU
VW
XY

Z[\]̂[_̀_a]bcd
efghijk lmgnimko pkqimr rs s r

t u
v

wxyz TRTT TRTU TRTV0; �P�+�#���;�QP�+���� 	
		 	
	� 	
	���������������� ������ ��������� ������ ��������� ������ ��������������� " ## ! ## ) !&"'"(*+�,�+ - $ ## ! $""'"( { !""'"(0 1�+ $ ## $ "'"( | %""'"(�+234 " ## " ## " ##5�6�7 8 2 �4 " ## " ## " ##*+�9�7 8 2 �4 " ## " ## " ##�+�9��3�0::��;�4 " ## " ## " ##<=>?@ } CC A EA~G~I EF }D~G~I
�����O>?���OK>��=?�N��O�=�>�O�=�N���?K?�O�OK>����>O���>=�O��C��O�O��O��}~}D

������������������������� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��̈�©��ª���«���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��¬�®̄��°�ª���±���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��²�³��®�́���ª���µ���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��̈����¤�¶�³�ª������� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��̈�©��·°����®�̄�ª���̧���� ¡¢£¤¥�¤�£¦ §��¹�̄�́���ª���º����»¤¡¼ ̈ ¥¬½�²�¡ £�¹¼ª���º«���¬²¦¢�£¦¡�¬¤££�¹¼ª���º±���¬²¦¢�£¦¡��¾¥»̈ £�¹¼ª��º����·¥¬²¥¢¥¬�§£¼�¹¼¦³�������¦��¿ÀÁẦÃÁÄ¿ÄÅ ¿ÆÁẦÃÁÄ¿ÄÅ�ÇÈÇÇÈÀÉ�ÊË
Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 71 of 110



���������	
��������������
�������������

������������������	���������	���	����� !"#$�%�&#�#'"#$()*+,-./ 0100� 0102� 0103�45 $!6%7$89:#$ ;<=>;?@A B<B;C?@A C<DEF?=@45 $!6%G9$�$5H A?AA E?AA A?AA45 $!6%I! !$�J�6# A?AA A?AA A?AA45 $!6%I5$9K# F?AA E=?@A B=?AA45 $!6%GLM A?AA A?AA A?AA45 $!6%NK!O'!"96# A?AA A?AA B?B@45 $!6%P9�J�6# A?AA A?AA A?AA45 $!6%Q!! D=?B@ EC?AA ;A;?AA45 $!6%N�R!!6 F?AA C?@A B?AAS	��� TUVWXYZ[ \U][]Y[̂ ]UX̂ \Ŷ^
45 $!6�_!8$:

àbacadefghijhkgl mnopqrstpuvwxpmnopqrsyvpzpn{omnopqrs|npv}xmnopqrs~}q���mnopqrs�qqomnopqrs~z�qqr
������ � ���� �� ���������� ���� �

���� b̀bb b̀b� b̀bc

�� !"#$�%�&#�#'"#$�,�/ 0100 0102 0103��*�)�������� *����� ��*��� ,� *����� ��*��� ,� *����� ��*��� ,�7!K¡8� ; %% A %;AA?A¢ C %%4!69�J A %% A %% A %%N#$£9�# A %% A %% A %%S	��� T ¤¤ ^ ¤T̂ Ŷ̂¥ ] ¤¤¦L&�,�/ 0100 0102 0103��*�)�������� *����� ��*��� ,� *����� ��*��� ,� *����� ��*��� ,�7!K¡8� B %% @ ;@A?A¢ E BA?A¢4!69�J A %% ; %% A %;AA?A¢N#$£9�# A %% A %% A %%S	��� \ ¤¤ X \̂ Ŷ̂¥ X Ŷ̂¥
�� !"#$�%�&#�#'"#$

§̀b
�ḧ©ªie«¬fl tq}uzo mqrvz® ~xp̄vzx� ° °° ° °

�
° °

���� b̀bb b̀b� b̀bc

������������������	����
±²³́µ¶³·±·̧

&5 5�:!8$�#¹�ºIN�&5 5�Q##¡�K 5$9!�4$!£9K�956�4!69�#<�4$!H#::9!K56�N 5K¡5$¡:�P8$#58�7!''5K¡#$�º#»!$ :�%�Q96#�I5K5¼#$�NJ: #'±²³́µ¶³·±·̧

½¾¿ÀÁÂ¾Ã�¿¾ÄÅÆÇÈÉ�ÊËÌÌ�Í�ÎÏÐÑÒÓËÒ�ÑÔÎÕ�ÆÖÀ×ÀÈØ�ÊËÙÌ�Í�ÎÏÐÑÒÓËÒ�ÑÔÎÕ�ÆÚÛÀÜÝÅÀÞÈØ�ÊËßÌ�Í�ÎÏÐÑÒÓËÒ�ÑÔÎÕ�Æà¾áÃÅÜÀâÃÅÈØ�ÊËãÌ�Í�ÎÏÐÑÒÓËÒ�ÑÔÎÕ�ÆÖÛÂÁÅ�ÒÂäÅáÈØ�ÊËÊÌÍ�ÎÏÐÑÒÓËÒ�ÑÔÎÕ�ÆÖÀ×À�åÞÃÂ¿ÂÜÀÝÈØ�ÊËæÌ�Í�ÎÏÐÑÒÓËÒ�ÑÔÎÕ�Æç¾ÝÅâÅÁÈØ�ÊËèÌ�Í�éÒÏêÎÖÓÚë�àËÏÎÑ�çêØ�ÊËèÙ�Í�ÚàÔÐ½ÑÔÏ�ÚÒÑÑ�çêØ�ÊËèß�Í�ÚàÔÐ½ÑÔÏ�ËìÓéÖÑ�çêØÊËèÊ�Í�åÓÚàÓÐÓÚËÕÑê�çê ±í³́µ¶³·±·̧�îïîîï²ð�dñ±²³́µ¶³·±·̧

����������
���ò	��ó����	�����	�ó��ô����
���õ����
���	����¤�����
����\̂ \W

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 72 of 110



����������	
��������������������� ������������������
��
 !
"

#$%�&'�()*+,-(&$./ ���� ���0 ��� 
1

23456789745 :453456789745������������������;<=>?=<@<?ABCD>E FGFF� FGFH� FGFI�JKLM N N NO�PQL��L�P R N N�LQ��SL�P N N NT�PO�PQL��L�P U N NT��V���W��X N N NY�VZL�[�� N N N����\ ]] ^ ^
_̀ �̀����a�b����c��	d�e���	�e�a�	d��f���
�b����g����b_a���	�h���a�b�	�î ij

klmnoplq�mlrstuvw�xyzz�{�|}~���y����|��t�n�nv��xy�z�{�|}~���y����|��t��n��sn�v��xy�z�{�|}~���y����|��t�l�qs�n�qsv��xy�z�{�|}~���y����|��t��pos��p�s�v��xyxz{�|}~���y����|��t�n�n���qpmp�n�v��xy�z�{�|}~���y����|��t�l�s�sov��xy�z�{���}�|������y}|������xy���{����~k��}����������xy���{����~k��}�y���������xy�x�{������~��y��������sntuvw��kk����-�� � ¡ �¢��-�� � ¡�£¤£¥¤�¦�§̈

©Z�;<=>?=<@<?ABCD>E FGFF� FGFH� FGFI�JKLM N N NO�PQL��L�P ª« « ¬�LQ��SL�P  N RT�PO�PQL��L�P RN R® ¬NT��V���W��X N N NY�VZL�[�� N ªN ª̄����\ °] °i ±²���������	
�������������������d�_aa�		��a������������������������³Éµ FGFI ¶·̧¹º»¼¼CD>E ������\ � ^
©Z�³Éµ FGFI ¶·̧¹º»¼¼CD>E �� ½́<¾� ¿?AÀ<¼@<?A� ;<ÀEµ=<?A� Á?A¿?AÀ<¼@<?A� Á?@Â¼¼E>@EÃ� Ä»ÂC<¼ÅE@�VPL�KM����WMKLP� � � ª � � � � ]VSSKÆM� � N ª N ¯ N N °JKLM�QL�MK�L�PS � � N N R N N ±J��K�Ç��È�W���K�L�P � N N N ª N � ]�ZL�[�����É�ÇL�M� � � N N N N ª̄ ]jZÇ�È� � � N ¬ ¬ N � jZÇ��K�S � � N ª N � � ]ÊK��KP�S � � N � ª � � ]Ê�KW�PS � � N N Ë N � ²����\ � ^ i ± î ^ ]j ±²ÌÍÎ�ÏÐÑÒÎÓ�ÐÔÕ�ÖÍÐ×Ï�ØÔ�ÏÍÙÓ�ÚÐÛÎ�Ú×ÎÓÎÔÏ�ÓÜÝÝÐ×ÙÞÎÕ�ßØÜÏÍ�ÖÍÐ×ÛÎÓ�Ñß�ÕÙÓÚØÓÙÏÙØÔ�ÐÔÕ�ØÖÖÜ××ÎÔÖÎ�ÏßÚÎ�ÏÍÐÏ�ÍÐàÎ�ÑÎÎÔ�×ÎÖØ×ÕÎÕ�ÙÔ�ÏÍÎ�áââ�ãÙÖÍÎ�äåæ�ÐÚÚÒÙÖÐÏÙØÔç�áè�ÔØÏÎé�ÏÍÎ�ãÙÖÍÎ�ÕÐÏÐ�ÓØÜ×ÖÎÕ�èØ×�ÏÍÙÓ�×ÎÚØ×Ï�ÚÐÛÎ�ØÔÒß�ÒÙÓÏÓ�ßØÜÏÍ�ÖÍÐ×ÛÎÓ�ÏÍÐÏ�ÍÐàÎ�ÍÐÕ�Ð�ÕÙÓÚØÓÙÏÙØÔ�ÏßÚÎ�ÎÔÏÎ×ÎÕ�ÐÛÐÙÔÓÏ�ÏÍÎÝç��ÌÍÎ×ÎèØ×Îê�ÚÒÎÐÓÎ�ÑÎ�ÐëÐ×Î�ÏÍÐÏ�ÏÍÎ�ÖØÜÔÏÓ�Øè�ßØÜÏÍ�ÖÍÐ×ÛÎÓ�ÎÔÏ×ÙÎÓ�ØÔ�ÏÍÙÓ�×ÎÚØ×Ï�ÚÐÛÎ�Ð×Î�ÜÔÕÎ×�ÓÏÐÏÙÔÛ�ÏÍÎ�ÚØÏÎÔÏÙÐÒ�ÓÜÝ�Øè�ßØÜÏÍ�ÖÍÐ×ÛÎÓ�ÏÍÐÏ�Ð×Î�ÙÔ�áââ�ãÙÖÍÎ�äåæç

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 73 of 110



�
������� 	

�����
� ������������� ��� ����� ��� ����� ��� �

�������������� !��"!!#$$��!�%&'()*+,�-��+'+.*+,���� 	

�����
� ������������� /� ����� �� ����� 01 � &'()*+,�-��+'+.*+,
2324556778958:�;9<�= >2>> >2>? >2>@AB CDEFG BGHIIJKKLMILN OMPQJMRLR"SS�T���!�U����VW�$X�Y�ZW$�Y�!W$X%�����[�U����\]%��U"!�Ŵ�$�_�T�!�U �̂$�̀à b

cdef8gehchi cjef8gehchi�klkkldm�nopqrstuqv�rqwxyz{|�}~�����������~�������y�s�s{��}~�����������~�������y��s��xs�{��}~�����������~�������y�q�vx�s�vx{��}~�����������~�������y��utx��u�x�{��}~}���������~�������y�s�s���vuru�s�{��}~�����������~�������y�q�x�xt{��}~����������������~��������}~���������p�������������}~���������p����~���������}~�}�����������~��������xsyz{|��pp

���
2 22>224556778958:�;9<�= >2>> >2>? >2>@F¡F BF¢F¡¢G ¢GHIIJKKLMILN OMPQJMRLR

&'()*+,�-��+'+.*+,���� £¤£¥	

�����
�¦§̈�©� 	

�����
�� ����������ª.*«¬®'+�ª̄ °̄̄(®'+ � �ª((+.±(�),�(²,+(�)³�̄«°'°́+ �� �µ¶*+,�·®*¬+́�µ,°.+�-µ¶*+,*«¬¬¶°®̧¹º,̄ .̄+®(¹»(¬¼°®̧ � ��).+̄(°'�́°̄±«(+ � �º,̄ .̄+®( � �½+®(¬�²+¬(²�'( �1 �¾+,̄)®�¿+¬¬-À+°®̧�µ²+'¼ � �¾²)®+�'¬¬̄ � �Á®¬Â³«¬¬¶�(�¬,̧+ � �¿+±)®̄ � �ÃW��� ÄÅ `
�������������� !��"!!#$$��!�%�̂]�"!!#$$��!��Ã]Z�

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 74 of 110



� �������� 	
		� 	
	�� 	
	������ � � �������������������� � � ���������������� � � � ! "���� � # �������������������� � � ���������������� � � �$!��� � % &
'()*+!,)�'--.**) -),/01�2�������0�32������� 	
		� 	
	�� 	
	������ � � 4������������������� � � ���������������� � � � ! "���� � � 4������������������� � � ���������������� � � �$!��� � � �/01�2�������0�32��
5
6789::;<<=>:=? @5@@ @5@A @5@B

C
D

EFEGFHIFIJ�FKLMJFNL FHIFIJ�FKLMJFNL
'OO�P)��-QR) ��S!�*+�T)U!*�T)-!*+,�V� �W)R) ��XY,�)R'-�!Z)*�"�P)-)RZ)*����&

[\]̂=_]̀[̀a [b]̂=_]̀[̀a�cdccd\e�fghijklmin�jiopqrst�uvww�x�yz{|}~v}�|�y��q�k�ks��uv�w�x�yz{|}~v}�|�y��q��k��pk�s��uv�w�x�yz{|}~v}�|�y��q�i�np�k�nps��uv�w�x�yz{|}~v}�|�y��q��mlp�}m�p�s��uvuwx�yz{|}~v}�|�y��q�k�k���nmjm�k�s��uv�w�x�yz{|}~v}�|�y��q�i�p�pls��uv�w�x��}z�y�~����vzy|�����uv���x����{h|�z��}||�����uv���x����{h|�z�v�~��|����uv�u�x��~��~{~�v�|������pkqrst��hh

/01�2�������0�32��
5
6789::;<<=>:=? @5@@ @5@A @5@B

C
C

EFEGFHIFIJ�FKLMJFNL FHIFIJ�FKLMJFNL�����'()*+!,)�'--.**) -), �! "�����'()*+!,)�'--.**) -),

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 75 of 110



�����������	
���	��������������������������������������� ���!"#$ %&&"$"' ())"*+"' ,�())"*+"'-.-- /-0 -0 /1234-.-0 /.5 /6 /12/4-.-5 //7 -0 /6234 �������������� ���
8988:;;<=<>�?@>�ABB<CD<> E8EE E8EF E8EG

HIJ HHKHLMIJ IJHN
OPPQRQS TUUQVWQSXY�!"#$ %&&"$"' ())"*+"' ,�())"*+"'-.-- Z./ 16 /32Z4-.-0 57Z 6Z -.254-.-5 567 10 /72Z4

[\\�]�	�̂���	�_
��̀���a
�	��
�̀��b��������	����	��[	
����c�]�������dedf

ghijklhm�ihnopqrs�tuvv�w�xyz{|}u|�{~x��p�j�jr��tu�v�w�xyz{|}u|�{~x��p��j��oj�r��tu�v�w�xyz{|}u|�{~x��p�h�mo�j�mor��tu�v�w�xyz{|}u|�{~x��p��lko�|l�o�r��tutvw�xyz{|}u|�{~x��p�j�j���mlil�j�r��tu�v�w�xyz{|}u|�{~x��p�h�o�okr��tu�v�w��|y�x�}����uyx{�����tu���w���~zg{~y��|{{�����tu���w���~zg{~y�u�}��{����tu�t�w��}��}z}�u�{����~�ojpqrs�~gg����<������ ����<�������� �� �¡�¢£

�������������� ���¤"$¥¦)"§̈©+%&&"$"'ª"#§©« ¬¬¬� ¬¬®� ¬¬̄�� . . .� . . .°±��± �²���³́�²����µ¶³�·�������́ �̧¶² . / /°±��± ���́±²�́��µ�́±²���¶�³�±� . . .

�������������� ���
898E8
F8:;;<=<>�?@>�ABB<CD<> ¹º»¼½¾¿À�Á¿½ÂÃ¾¼Ä½½ÅÃÆ¾ÇÅÈÅ½½»¼É¾ÊÃÁÁ¼É�Á¼Å¾ËÌ¼É¾ÅÆ�Ë¼ÅÆ¾Ë�ÅÀ¾Ê¼ÍÃÅÆ�Å½½ÅÃÆ¾ÎËÈ¼Å¾½Ï¼ÅÂºÉ½ÐÅ¿Æ�Ñ¿ºÆÅ¾¿ºÉ½ ÒÈÅÃÁÌ¿½ÀË¿¼ÓÄ¾¾¼»Â¾�»ÃÈÁ¼ÈÐÔÕ�ÖÃ½×È¼½×º¾ËÌº¾ºÈ�Ñ¼Ë¿ÀÆ¼�ÀºÆÆ¿½¿ºÉÐÈ¼ÅÀË�ºÓ�ÂÈºÖÅ¾¿ºÉØÙÖ¼È�ÕÉÅÖÆ¼Á�ØÈ¿»¼�Ô�ØÚÒÅ»¿ÆÙ�Á¿½ÂÃ¾¼ØÙÖ¼È�ÕÉÅÖÆ¼Á�ØÈ¿»¼�Ô�ÚÊ¾ºÆ¼É�Ñ¼Ë¿ÀÆ¼ÊÃ½Â¿À¿ºÃ½�Â¼È½ºÉ ÎË¼Ó¾

JI
HH HL N K K K Û M M M J J J I I I H H H HJ L I H M I L Û H L H J H L L L L L L L L

OPPQRQS TUUQVWQS

XY�Ü"$§©«(Ý"ª#«Ý" ¬¬¬� ¬¬®� ¬¬̄�� 72Z4 3204 1264//���/7 1Z234 /..2.4 0234/3���-Z /..2.4 /..2.4 /32.4-7���5Z /..2.4 60204 -.25457���7Z /..2.4 /..2.4 --2Z47���/. /..2.4 � 00204�Þ���7Z /..2.4 /..2.4 /Z274ß¶²���7 /..2.4 /..2.4 .2.4

����������	
���	���������������������[à������á�a�
������������a	�̀�âãä��������å�
àa

�������������� ���
8988æçD?è�¢<=éç@éê�ë ILII ILIJ ILIMHIJ HHìHLÛL HHHIJ HHKHLMíîWïð�ñQRòîóò ôîW�OPPQRQS OPPQRQS

XY�¤"$¥¦)"§̈©+%&&"$"'ª"#§©« ¬¬¬� ¬¬®� ¬¬̄�� . . .� . . .°±��± �²���³́�²����µ¶³�·�������́ �̧¶² 6 / 3°±��± ���́±²�́��µ�́±²���¶�³�±� . . .
����������õ
	�[�����̀�������������� ���Ü"$§©«(Ý"ª#«Ý" ¬¬¬� ¬¬®� ¬¬̄�� 7274 7274 �//���/7 77234 � Z.2.4/3���-Z /..2.4 /..2.4 3234-7���5Z /..2.4 10204 -023457���7Z /..2.4 /..2.4 -72647���/. � � .2.4�Þ���7Z /..2.4 � .2.4ß¶²���7 � � .2.4

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 76 of 110



�
��������	�	�
�����������	������	�	�
������������������������ �!�"# $�%&'&�(��)�"*++�,�*-���.*/'�-0� 1,'�2�3�"� 4�567$�(�+���&-&0�/�%&�+1�8�'�9�'1���.*/'�-0� 1,'�2�

��.*/'�7-:*/2&'�*-�5&0�
;��<���=
�� �)&'&�./�,�-'�)��-�'��,�/�.*/'��,�)1-&2����-�-&'>/��&-)�&-1�->2?�/,�2&1���&-0��*9�/�'�2��&,�'���655��*-'�->��'*��-9�,'�0&'��&-)�,*+9���/�2�@#���:*++*A�-0�/�.*/'�'&?,�&�B>�/��'���/�)&'&�:/*2�'���655��������� �!�"# $�%&'&�(��)C "*2.+&�-',�35>?+���"*2.+&�-',� ��'�*-�6-+14C "�&/0�,C D&/-�-0,C E�*+�-'�"/�2�C��������5/*.�/'1�"/�2�C��������%/>0�"/�2�C��������"+�&/&-����&'�C��������F-:*>-)�)C��������6'��/�"/�2�C��������G*>'��"�&/0�,C���������H8�!���-'&+�H�&+'��8�'C��������69�/)*,�C��������E��'�2� �/9���,

I�����������������J�
K�����L�I�
M#/&::���/�+&'�)�)&'&�:*/�"*++�,�*-,�&-)�(&'&+�'��,�&/���*++��'�)�:/*2�'���655��"� �&..+��&'�*-@#���:*++*A�-0�/�.*/'�'&?,�&�B>�/��'���/�)&'&�:/*2�'���655��"� �3"*++�,�*-���.*/'�-0� 1,'�24C��������"*++�,�*-,C��������(&'&+�'��,�N��L�	��K�N���O��K���������JM5&'/*+��*>/,�&/���*++��'�)�:/*2�'���655�%8��&..+��&'�*-@#���:*++*A�-0�/�.*/'�'&?,�&�B>�/��'���/�)&'&�:/*2�'���655�%8��3%&�+1�8�'�9�'1���.*/'�-04C��������"*2.+&�-',�35&'/*+�H*>/,� ��'�*-�6-+14

Detachment Commander Report - October 2024-December 2024 Moved by: Secon... Page 77 of 110



SUPERIOR EAST OPP BOARD TRAVEL POLICY TRAVEL AND EXPENSE 
REIMBURSEMENT

Travel and Expense Reimbursement

1. Policy Purpose
This Policy governs the reimbursement of travel, training and other business expenses 
incurred during O.P.P. Board approved events . It is the Board’s policy to reimburse 
members and employees for necessary and reasonable expenses incurred when 
directly related to travel, training and events. 
Directly related expenses are those directly related to a business meeting or 
travel/training approved by the Board through Resolution.
Reimbursement for any expenses that are not in compliance with this Policy requires 
approval by a Board Resolution.

2. Policy – General
2.1 Reporting Responsibilities
The completion of an approved Travel Expense Form (Appendix “1”) must be completed 
and submitted to the Board Bookkeeper with required supporting documentation 
including original receipts for accommodations, fuel, and other approved incidentals 
within thirty (30) days following the individual’s return from travel.

2.2 Travel Advances
a) Travel advance requests must be made at least two weeks prior to departure.
b) The amount of advance will be calculated, based on the estimated expenses 

associated with each individual circumstance.
c) Travel advances resulting in $0.00 balances (advance equals actual costs), or 

amounts owed back must be reconciled. For amounts owned back payment 
(reimbursement) must be made within thirty (30) days from the date of return 
from travel. 

d) Any outstanding travel claim that is not submitted to within 30 days of the date of 
return from travel will not be allowed any further advances for travel until the 
outstanding advance has been settled.

2.3 Loss of Wages – Board Members 
Where regular employment wages are lost while Board Members attend an approved 
travel, training or event and written proof from the member is provided, lost wages may 
be claimed up to a maximum of $250 per day. Reimbursement of lost wages will only 
apply to regular scheduled work hours of the individual. 

2.4 Reimbursable Expenses

2.4.1 Registration Fees
a) Registration fees for attendance at conferences, seminars, workshops or 

other meetings and training events will be reimbursed in full.

Draft - Travel Reimbursement Policy Page 78 of 110



SUPERIOR EAST OPP BOARD TRAVEL POLICY TRAVEL AND EXPENSE 
REIMBURSEMENT

Travel and Expense Reimbursement

b) Costs for other activities such as site tours, social or sporting activities not 
part of the registration fees shall not be reimbursed.

c) Spousal registration fees or expenses are not reimbursable.

2.4.2 Daily Meal Allowance

a) Any person who receives a meal allowance may not claim additional 
personal expenses. Receipts are not required for meal allowances when 
overnight travel is required.

Breakfast: $20.00
Lunch: $25.00
Dinner: $35.00

b) It is understood that when meals are provided at an event, or conference, or 
paid by another party, the meal allowance will be reduced according to the 
above. When a registration fee involves a portion to cover provided meals 
and each person travelling should use the meals provided and paid for. 

c) Members traveling may be reimbursed for meals upon submission of receipts 
if there is a valid reason for the person not being able to attend the meal as 
supplied by the event. 

d) Where a meal expense is applicable the following times will be applied: 
Breakfast - If required to depart before 8:00 a.m. 
Lunch - If required to depart before or returns later than 12:00 p.m. 
Dinner - If unable to return home until after 6:00 p.m.

e) When it is necessary to entertain clients while traveling, detailed receipts 
must be submitted indicating what was purchased, who was entertained and 
the reason. The applicable meal allowance will be deducted from the daily 
meal allowance for the employee meal claimed as part of this hospitality 
receipt. 

2.4.3 Transportation

The most economical class of transportation must be determined, documented and 
used. This includes car-pooling, rental car, airplanes or what is reasonably available. 
Where more than one individual is attending the same event, the Board expects those 
attending to car-pool. Those who submit multiple requests for mileage and who have 
travelled to the same conference will not be reimbursed unless approved by the Board.

a) Where an individual uses his/her own car for business travel to attend events 
employees are responsible for ensuring that they have adequate insurance 
coverage. The current applicable mileage rate for the use of personal 
automobiles business will be reimbursed as per the Ontario Government’s 
mileage rate in effect at the time of travel.

b) While operating a personal automobile to travel, the individual is responsible 
for all vehicular costs, such as repairs, fines, fuel insurance, deductibles, etc.

Draft - Travel Reimbursement Policy Page 79 of 110



SUPERIOR EAST OPP BOARD TRAVEL POLICY TRAVEL AND EXPENSE 
REIMBURSEMENT

Travel and Expense Reimbursement

c) Unless exceptional circumstances apply, the charges for the use of a 
personal automobile shall not exceed the equivalent cost of economy airfare, 
plus airport parking and transfers. 

d) Economy class airfare will be reimbursed and airport parking charges. 
Receipts must be provided. 

e) Travellers may be reimbursed for the actual costs of taxicabs, limousines, or 
equivalent for transportation between the airport terminal and the hotel or 
other destination point. 

2.4.4 Accommodation

Reasonable accommodation expenses when overnight travel is required is claimable 
as follows:

a) The actual cost of a single room, or double room, when a single room is not 
available. Receipts are required to show the place, date and number of days 
and the rate per day for single occupancy.

b) Parking charges will be reimbursed.
c) Accommodation expenses will not be reimbursed if staying with friends and 

family and no expense is incurred.
d) In the event of travel cancellations, individuals will be required to pay ‘no 

show’ charges resulting from failure to cancel a hotel or fee.
e) An overnight stay if inclement weather (e.g. snowstorm) is forecasted or the 

travel requires an individual to drive in the dark, before sunrise or after sunset 
is reimbursable.

2.5 Travel Expense Reports

a) Individuals are responsible for filing travel expense reports with the 
bookkeeper within 30 days (See Appendix).

b) Original detailed receipts must be filed with the expense report for all travel 
expenses.

c) All claims shall be reimbursed in Canadian Funds. If travel out-of-country is 
required, the exchange rate used in calculation of the reimbursement will be 
the Bank of Canada rate on the day the expense was incurred.

2.6 Entertainment – No Alcoholic Beverages

a) Hospitality expenses are not reimbursable.

b) Alcoholic beverages will not be reimbursed.

Draft - Travel Reimbursement Policy Page 80 of 110



SUPERIOR EAST OPP BOARD TRAVEL POLICY TRAVEL AND EXPENSE 
REIMBURSEMENT

Travel and Expense Reimbursement

Appendix “1”  - Travel Form and Requisition

Draft - Travel Reimbursement Policy Page 81 of 110



Superior East OPP Detachment Board 

Procedural By-law 

A by-law of the Superior East OPP Detachment Board to establish the 
rules governing the order and proceedings of the board. established by 
the board. 

WHEREAS, Section 46 (1) of the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 provides that subject to 
the regulations made by the Minister, if any, a police service board shall establish its own rules and 
procedures in performing its duties under this Act and the regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Section 67 (6) of the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 states that the following 
provision apply to OPP detachment boards, with necessary modifications, as if they were police 
service boards and include 8. Section 46 (Rules and procedures); and 

WHEREAS, the Superior East OPP Detachment Board deems it advisable to enact a bylaw to 
govern the proceedings of the Board and the calling of Meetings and to provide for procedures 
and statutory requirements in accordance with the Act; 

NOW THEREFORE the Superior East OPP Detachment Board enacts as follows: 

1. Definitions 

In this By-law: 

“Abstain” shall mean a Member who is lawfully entitled to vote and who is present at a meeting but 
chooses not to exercise their right to vote on a matter. This does not include where a Member is 
absent or is not participating due to a declared conflict of interest. 

“Act” shall mean the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019, as amended or replaced from 
time to time. 

“Acting Chair” shall mean any Member of the Board who is responsible for chairing a meeting 
if the regular Chair is absent or otherwise unavailable. The procedure for selecting an Acting 
Chair is in Schedule A of this By-law. 

“Agenda” shall mean the written and published order of proceedings for a meeting, setting out 
the business to be considered at the meeting. 

 “Board” shall mean the Superior East OPP Detachment Board. 

“By-law” shall mean a local law that has been enacted by the Board in order to exercise a 
power provided by legislation. 

“Chair” shall mean the Member who presides at the Board  meeting. 



“Closed Session” shall mean a meeting or part of a meeting that is closed to the public in 
accordance with Section 44 of the Act. 

“Communications” shall mean a section of the regular Board Agenda that lists informative 
communications for the Board to be aware of. 

“Confirmatory By-law” means a by-law passed at the conclusion of Board Meetings, confirming 
the actions of the Board taken at that meeting and any previous Meetings which did not have a 
confirmatory by-law, in respect of each Motion and other actions taken, so that every decision of the 
Board at that meeting shall have the same force and effect as if each and every one of them had 
been the subject-matter of a separately enacted by-law. 

“Conflict of Interest” shall mean a pecuniary interest as defined in Ontario Regulation 409/23 
Code of Conduct for OPP Detachment Board Members. 

“Defer” shall mean to delay the consideration of a matter, generally until a specific time or 
event. 

“Delegate” shall mean any person, group of persons, firm or organization who is neither a Member 
of the Board, , or an appointed official of the Board and who is addressing the Board in real time, 
either in person or electronically. 

“Electronic Participation” or “Virtual Participation” shall mean a Member of the Board who 
participates remotely in any open or closed Board meeting via electronic means whereby the 
Member is able to fully participate in the meeting despite not being physically present. The 
Member(s) participating electronically shall have the same rights and responsibilities as if they were 
in physical attendance, including the right to vote, and shall be included as being present in 
determining Quorum. 

“Emergency Meeting” shall mean a meeting of the Board called without notice to address the 
circumstances of an Emergency. 

“Majority Vote” shall mean a vote where over half of the Members present, and eligible to 
participate vote in the same manner. 

“Meeting” shall mean any regular, Special, or Emergency Meetings of the Board, where Quorum is 
present in person and/or virtually and Members discuss or otherwise deal with any matter in a way 
that materially advances the business or decision making. 

“Meeting Recess” shall mean the period of time each year when no Board or other Meetings are 
scheduled. A Meeting recess shall normally occur during the months of July and December. This 
does not prevent the calling of a Special or Emergency meeting. 

“Member” shall mean, according to the circumstances, a Member of the Board, , including the 
Chair. 



“Motion” shall mean a verbal recommendation moved by a Member during a meeting, and 
seconded by another Member, that resolves and effects a decision. 

“Notice of Motion” shall mean written notice from a Member provided in advance of a meeting to 
the Recording Secretary, advising the Board that the Motion described therein shall be brought 
forward to the next Board meeting unless otherwise specified. 

“Point of Order” shall mean a Motion introduced by a Member with the view to calling attention to 
any departure from this by-law or in the practiced conduct during a meeting. 

“Point of Privilege” shall mean a Motion introduced by a Member who is concerned that a matter 
affects the credibility, reputation, integrity, or dignity of a Member individually or as a group of 
Members. 

“Point of Procedure” shall mean a Motion introduced to obtain information on a matter of 
procedure where the rules of this by-law bearing on the business at hand in order to assist a 
Member to make an appropriate Motion or understand the parliamentary situation or the effect of 
a Motion. 

“Presentation” shall mean the occurrence when staff, an individual or group have been invited to 
present information to the Board. This shall include ceremonial presentations to or from the Board, 
or presentations made by staff and/or by consultants retained by the Board or by another level of 
government. 

“Quorum” shall mean a majority (more than half) of the whole number of Members of the Board 
except where a Member has or Members have declared a pecuniary interest pursuant to Ontario 
Regulation 409/23, the Quorum may be less than half plus one of the whole number of Members 
but shall not be less than two. Members attending virtually shall count towards Quorum. 

“Recorded Vote” shall mean documenting in the minutes of a Board meeting the name of 
each Member and the Members’ vote on a matter or question. 

“Recording Secretary” shall mean the recording secretary or designate duly appointed by the 
Board. 

 “Refer” shall mean to send a matter currently under consideration by the Board to an 
individual, department, , or Council for further consideration and/or action. 

“Special Meeting” shall mean a meeting of the Board that is in addition to what has been 
published on the annual meeting schedule. Special Meetings shall be focused on one or more 
particular and specific items or subjects. 

“Two-thirds Vote” shall mean a vote where at least two-thirds of the Members present and 
eligible to vote, vote in the same manner. 

2. Principles and Rules 

2.1 General Principles 



2.1.1. Each Member has the right to: 

a) One vote per Motion, subject to the declaration of pecuniary interest. 

b) Information to help make decisions, unless otherwise prevented by law. 

c) Efficient Meetings. 

d) To be treated with respect and courtesy. 

2.2 General Rules 

2.2.1. The Board shall observe the rules of procedure contained in this By-law in all 
Meetings. 

2.2.2. This By-law shall be used to guide the order and dispatch of business of the Board 
Meetings wherever possible. 

2.2.3. . 

2.2.4. All Meetings shall be open to the public. 

2.2.5. Notwithstanding the above, a meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the 
public in accordance with Section 44 of the Act. 

2.2.6. No item shall be placed on an Agenda with respect to a matter which is not within the 
jurisdiction of the Board. The Chair, in consultation with the Recording Secretary shall 
determine if a matter is within the jurisdiction of the Board  

2.2.7. In the event of conflict between the provisions of this by-law and the Act, or any other 
legislation, the provisions of the legislation shall prevail. 

2.2.8. Subject to the right of appeal by a Member, the Chair shall be responsible to interpret 
the rules of procedure established by this by-law with the assistance and advice of the 
Recording Secretary. 

2.2.9. The Recording Secretary or designate shall be the secretary of Board Meetings and 
shall be in attendance at all Meetings either in person or virtually. 

2.2.10. Where procedural matters of the Board are not provided for in this by-law, and are not 
governed by the Act, or any other legislation, Robert’s Rules of Order shall apply. 

2.2.11. Information which is to be distributed shall be supplied to the Recording Secretary 
for examination and potential distribution. 

2.3 Suspension of Rules 

2.3.1. No provision of this by-law shall be suspended except by a two-thirds vote in the 
affirmative. 



2.3.2. A suspension of the rules shall only apply to the specific procedure(s) or rule(s) which 
are stated within the Motion to suspend and only during the meeting in which such 
Motion was introduced. 

2.3.3. No other business shall take place during a Special Meeting other than what is 
identified on the published Agenda. 

2.3.4. Quorum requirements shall not be suspended. 

2.4 Public Notice 

2.4.1. Public notice shall include the following information regarding each meeting: 

a) Date 

b) Time 

c) Location 

d) Methods of participation (electronic or in person) 

2.4.2. The Recording Secretary shall give public notice of all regular open and closed Board 
Meetings by posting the Agendas on the designated Municipal websites seven (7) days 
prior to the meeting. 

2.4.3. The Recording Secretary shall give public notice of Special Meetings of the Board by 
posting the Agenda(s) on the designated Municipal websites as soon as possible after 
the meeting is called and no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

2.4.4. The Recording Secretary shall give public notice for Emergency Meetings of the Board 
by posting the Agenda on the designated Municipal websites as soon as possible after 
the meeting is called, or prior to the meeting if possible. 

2.4.5. Board Meetings may be cancelled in consultation with the Chair and Recording 
Secretary if insufficient business shall be before the Board. Notice of cancellation should 
be posted as soon as possible on the designated Municipal website. 

2.4.6. Board Meetings may be cancelled or postponed due to inclement weather, other similar 
occurrences, or Emergency situations. The Chair may direct the Recording Secretary to 
postpone a meeting by contacting all Members if possible. Generally, Meetings shall be 
postponed by 8:00 p.m. on the day prior to a meeting and notice of any cancellations 
shall be posted on the designed Municipal website as soon as possible. 

2.5 Annual Meeting Schedule 

2.5.1. The annual meeting schedule shall outline the dates of regular Board Meetings. 



2.5.2. Regular Board Meetings shall generally take place quarterly on the second Tuesday  
of the month, with the exception of the meeting recess. 

2.5.3. Special and Emergency Meetings may be called at any time including during the 
Meeting Recess. 

2.5.4. Any Board meeting that takes place outside of the annual meeting schedule shall be 
deemed to be a Special or Emergency Meeting. 

2.5.5. Rescheduled Meetings shall not be considered Special Meetings. 

2.5.6. The Recording Secretary shall prepare an annual meeting schedule for the Board’s 

consideration and approval by November 1 of each year, for the subsequent year. 

3. Roles and Responsibilities 

3.1. Assignment of Role 

3.1.1.  The Chair shall Chair Board Meetings unless by reason of absence, refusal, or is 
otherwise unable to do so. 

3.1.2. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall chair meetings. 

3.1.3. A Chair shall be appointed for a period of one year. 

3.1.4. The determination of the first Chair shall be determined by the members at the first 
meeting of the Board and at the annual anniversary thereafter. 

3.1.5. All Members of the Board, with the exception of the Board Chair, shall be eligible to 
serve as Board  Chair. 

3.1.6. If necessary, the length of each term of Chair may be adjusted. 

3.2. Responsibilities of the Chair 

3.2.1. It shall be the responsibility of the Chair to: 

a) Review and understand the Agenda in consultation with the Recording Secretary. 

b) Provide direction when required regarding meeting conduct and procedures with 
assistance from the Recording Secretary. 

c) Represent Board initiatives and decisions to the public, where appropriate. 

d) Open the meeting by calling the meeting to order at the appointed time. 

e) Ensure that Quorum is established and maintained throughout the meeting. 

f) Announce the business in the order in which it is to be considered. 



g) Manage the discussions in such a manner that all questions and comments are 
directed through the Chair. 

h) Receive and submit, in the proper manner, all Motions which are to be read aloud. 

i) Put to a vote all Motions which are moved and seconded when necessary and to 
announce the result of each vote. 

j) Decline to put to a vote any Motion which infringes upon the rules of this by-law or 
the Act. 

k) Provide order and decorum. 

l) Vote on all Motions. 

m) Ensure that Members, Recording Secretary and attendees adhere to the rules of 
this By-Law. 

n) Undertake all matters required to ensure that the meeting proceeds in an orderly 
and efficient manner 

o) Authenticate By-laws and minutes by signature when required. 

p) Adjourn the meeting when business is concluded or at the designated time. 

q) Be a political liaison with other Board Members. 

r) Approve the Recording Secretary’s time sheet for payroll purposes. 

s) Be the spokesperson on behalf of the Board. 

3.2.2. Maintain an appearance of impartiality on all matters. The Chair may answer questions 
or comment in a general way. 

3.2.3. If the Chair wishes to participate in debate, make a Motion, speak to a Motion under 
consideration, or leave the Chair for any other reason, the Chair shall first delegate their 
duties to a Member of the Board in accordance with the provisions of this By-law. 

3.2.4. The Chair shall not resume the position of Chair until they are finished debating the 
matter. Only then shall the Chair resume the position of Chair from the Acting Chair. 

4. Rules of Conduct for Members, Staff and Attendees at the Meetings  

4.1 Rules Specific to Members 

4.4.1. Members shall give notice to the Recording Secretary and the Chair at least 24 hours in 
advance of the meeting if they plan to attend the meeting virtually. Meeting attendance 
shall generally be virtually  unless special circumstances arise, members may attend in 
person.  



4.4.2. When two or more Members wish to speak, the Chair shall name the Member who 
is to speak first. 

4.4.3. When a Member is recognized by the Chair, the Member shall confine their remarks 
to the Motion under consideration. 

4.4.4. When a Motion is under debate, a Member may ask a question through the Chair of 
another Member, Recording Secretary or other. 

4.4.5. Members shall not interrupt another Member who is speaking, except to raise a Point 
of Order or Point of Privilege. 

4.4.6. Any Member may require the Motion under debate to be read at any time during the 
debate, but in doing so, shall not interrupt a Member who is speaking. 

4.4.7. All Members, Recording Secretary and delegations shall address their questions and 
comments through the Chair. 

4.4.8. Members shall not rise from their seats or make any noise or disturbance while a 
vote is being taken. 

4.4.9. No Member shall permanently leave the meeting without first advising the Chair or 
the Recording Secretary. 

4.4.10. Members shall not make detrimental comments, or speak ill, or malign the integrity 
of the Recording Secretary, the public, Chair or other Members of the Board  

4.4.11. Members shall not enter into debate or discussion with delegates. Members may ask, 
through the Chair, for points of clarification from delegates. 

4.2 Rules Specific to Presenters, Delegates and Attendees. 

4.2.1. An attendee shall not participate in a meeting unless they have received confirmation 
from the Recording Secretary that they have been registered as a delegate or presenter. 

4.2.2. Attendees seeking to be a delegate who have not received confirmation from the 
Recording Secretary are subject to consideration of the Board. The attendee shall only 
be permitted to speak if their request is supported by a two thirds vote in the affirmative. 

4.2.3. Delegates shall not at any time question the personal or professional integrity of the 
Board or the Recording Secretary. 

4.2.4. No person, except for Members of the Board and the Recording Secretary shall be 
permitted to come within or behind the Board Members’ seating during a meeting without 

the permission of the Board. 

4.2.5. No person shall display signs or distribute information. 



4.3 Rules for All in Attendance 

4.3.1. No person shall: 

a) Engage in any activity, conduct or behaviour or make any audible noise that could 
disturb deliberations. 

b) Use profane or offensive words or insulting expressions. 

4.3.2. Members are to mute devices for the duration of all Meetings.  

4.4 Breach of Conduct 

4.4.1. In the event that a Member or attendee persists in a breach of this By-law, after having 
been called to order by the Chair, the Chair shall without debate call the question “Shall 
the Member (or attendee) be ordered to leave the meeting?”. 

4.4.2. If the majority of Members present vote in the affirmative, the Chair shall order the 
Member or attendee to leave the room, or have the person removed from the virtual 
meeting, for the duration of the meeting. 

4.4.3. If the person refuses to leave, the Chair shall direct the Recording Secretary to seek 
appropriate assistance from the OPP to have the person removed and the Board shall 
leave the meeting room until the OPP arrives. 

5. Board Meetings 

5.1 Inaugural meeting of the Board 

5.1.1. The Inaugural meeting of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with the Act, 
and shall include the Declaration of Office/Oath of all members of the Board, and the 
appointment of Chair and Vice Chair. 

5.2 Board Meetings 

5.2.1. Locations of the Board Meetings will be identified on the Agendas. 

5.2.2. Regular meeting dates shall be identified in the annual meeting schedule. 

5.2.3. The start time for Board Meetings shall be 1 p.m. 

5.3 Special Meetings 

5.3.1. The Chair may at any time call a Special Meeting of the Board. 

5.3.2. A Chair may at any time call a Special Meeting. 

5.3.3. A Special Meeting of the Board may be called by the Recording Secretary once a Motion 
to do so has been adopted by the majority of Members at the meeting, or upon receiving 
a petition from a majority of Members of the Board  



5.3.4. A Motion or petition to hold a Special Meeting shall clearly state the purpose, date, and 
time of the Special Meeting. The petition shall be delivered to the Recording Secretary. 

5.3.5. The only business to be dealt with at a Special Meeting shall be that which is stated 
on the Agenda of the meeting. 

5.3.6. A minimum of forty-eight (48) hours’ notice shall be provided for all Special Meetings. 

This shall be achieved by posting the Agenda on the designated Municipal websites 
and by emailing the notice to the Members. 

5.4 Emergency Meetings 

5.4.1. The Chair may call an Emergency Board meeting at any time without providing forty-
eight (48) hours' notice. The Recording Secretary shall make best attempts to advise all 
Members immediately upon being notified of the intention to hold an Emergency 
meeting. 

6. Order of Business and General Rules  

6.1 Format of Agendas 

6.1.1. If an item on a regular Board Agenda does not have any associated content, that item 
heading may be omitted from the Agenda for that meeting. The numbering of items shall 
be adjusted as needed in this circumstance. 

6.2 Board Agendas 

6.2.1. Board Agendas shall generally be prepared as follows: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Land Acknowledgement 
3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof 
4. Approval of the Minutes 
5. Delegations/Presentations 
6. Items of Business 
7. Reports 
8. Communication and correspondence 
9. Closed Session 
10. Motion in Which Notice Has Previously Been Given 
11. Notice of Motion 
12. Adjournment 

6.3 Special and Emergency Agendas 

6.3.1. Special and Emergency Agendas shall generally be prepared as follows: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Land Acknowledgement 
3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof 
5. Items of Business 
6. Closed Session 



7. Adjournment 

6.4 Agenda Items – General Rules 

6.4.1. The Recording Secretary shall determine the appropriate meeting at which items of 
business shall be considered in accordance with this By-law. 

6.4.2. The Recording Secretary or their designate shall attend Board Meetings (both open and 
Closed Session) unless otherwise excluded. 

6.4.3. All meeting materials shall be distributed through and by the Recording Secretary or 
their designate. 

6.5 Approval of the Agenda 

6.5.1. After the Agenda has been posted, substantive amendments (additions or deletions) 
shall require a vote of at least two-thirds in the affirmative of the amending Motion. Clerical 
changes may be made at the discretion of the Recording Secretary. 

6.5.2. Amendments to the Agenda are to be made by Motion. Additions shall only be made 
to an Agenda if the matter is of a timely nature. 

6.5.3. Amendments to the Agenda may be initiated by either Members of the Board or the 
Recording Secretary. 

6.5.4. The Chair may change the order in which business on the Agenda is dealt with through 
unanimous consent of the Members participating in the meeting. This action does not 
require a formal Motion. 

6.6 Call to Order 

6.6.1. Upon being called to order, all persons in attendance shall immediately take their 
seats. Members participating remotely shall mute their mic until recognized by the 
Chair. 

6.7 Land Acknowledgement 

6.7.1. The Land Acknowledgement shall be read by the Chair at the start of all Board 
Meetings. 

6.8 Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof 

6.8.1. Where a Member has any interest, direct or indirect, in any matter and is present at a 
meeting at which the matter is the subject of consideration, the Member shall, in 
accordance with Regulation 409/23, disclose the Member's interest and the general 
nature thereof, prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting. 

6.8.2. Where a Member has declared an interest, the Member shall not take part in the 
discussion of or vote on any question in respect of the matter; and not attempt in any 
way before, during or after the meeting to influence the voting on the matter. 



6.8.3. Where a meeting is not open to the public, in addition to complying with the requirements 
of Regulation 409/23, the Member shall leave the meeting (physically or virtually) or the 
part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration. 

6.8.4. Where the interest of a Member has not been disclosed by reason of the Member's 
absence from a particular meeting, the Member shall disclose the Member's interest and 
otherwise comply at the first meeting of the Board (as the case may be), attended by the 
Member after the particular meeting. 

6.8.5. The Recording Secretary shall record in reasonable detail the particulars of any disclosure 
of pecuniary interest made by a Member, and this record shall appear in the Minutes of 
that meeting. 

6.9 Delegations 

6.9.1. Delegations shall be allowed at Board Meetings. 

6.9.2. Delegations are to be limited to five (5) minutes followed by a question period for 
Members limited to ten (10) minutes. 

6.9.3. Persons who wish to speak to an item on a Board Agenda have until 12 noon (12:00 
p.m.) on the day prior to the meeting to notify the Recording Secretary. 

6.9.4. Requests to be a delegate shall be made by submitting a written (email or hardcopy) 
to the Recording Secretary and shall identify which item on the Agenda is being 
addressed. 

6.9.5. Requests to be a delegate for any individual or any individual(s) representing a group 
shall be limited to one (1) Agenda item at a meeting. 

6.9.6. Delegations may only speak to the item for which notice was given and only on 
matters that are within the jurisdiction of the Board. 

6.9.7. All registered delegates for any item shall be heard only when the item is reached on 
the Agenda and before Members discuss or debate that item. 

6.9.8. If the item for which delegates have registered to speak is removed from the Agenda, 
the delegation shall be deemed to be cancelled. 

6.9.9. Once a delegation has been made on an Agenda item, the individual or group 
registered shall not be able to register as a delegation on the same item at future 
Meetings of the Board  for the remainder of that term of the Board. 

6.9.10. Individuals who have not submitted a request to speak to an item on the Agenda 
within the specified time may submit a request to be heard. This request shall be 
determined by the Board as an addition to the Agenda which, to be successful, shall 
require a two-thirds vote in the affirmative. 



6.9.11. The number of delegations per Agenda shall be limited to five (5). The number of 
delegations per Agenda item shall be limited to three (3). 

6.9.12. Individuals wishing to speak to a matter not on the Agenda shall provide the 
Recording Secretary with a written request outlining the subject matter and the 
requested outcome. The Recording Secretary shall advise the Chair of the request. 
The requestor shall be advised of the actions taken or when the item might come 
forward to a future Board meeting. 

6.10 Presentations 

6.10.1. Public presentations are for information purposes only. 

6.10.2. Public presentations shall be limited to ten (10) minutes. 

6.10.3. Presentations by outside organizations or individuals shall not be permitted for the sole 
purpose of generating publicity or proMotion for commercial purposes. 

6.10.4. Questions directed to the Recording Secretary by any presenter shall be received 
through the Chair. 

6.10.5. The purpose of presentations shall be when the Recording Secretary, an individual 
or group have been invited to present information to the Board. 

6.10.6. The role of the presenter is to provide information and not to enter into debate with 
the Board,  or the Recording Secretary. 

6.10.7. Celebratory or ceremonial presentations shall generally occur at Board Meetings. 

6.11 Items of Business 

6.11.1. The Recording Secretary shall bring forward any items of business that require board 
discussion and/or approval. 

6.11.2. A main motion with a mover and seconder is required to introduce business before 
the board. 

6.12 Reports 

12.1.1. Updates by the Chair, , and the Detachment Commander shall occur under this 
section of the Agenda. 

6.13 Correspondence 

6.13.1. Minutes and summaries received from external organizations shall be received under 
this section of the Agenda. 



6.13.2. Information items are matters that are principally for the information of the Board  and may 
not require any action or response from the Board. 

6.13.3. Any Member may request that an item of communication may be pulled for 
discussion at the next meeting. 

6.14 Closed Session (In Camera Session) 

6.14.1. All Meetings shall be open to the public except as provided for in Section 2.2.5 and no 
person shall be excluded from a meeting open to the public except for improper conduct 
or for breach of this by-law or applicable statute. 

6.14.2. The Recording Secretary or their designate shall remain in the room for all Closed 
Sessions or in the virtual session. 

6.14.3. A meeting may be conducted in Closed Session in accordance with Section 44 of the 
Act. 

6.14.4. Before moving into a Closed Session, it shall be established by Motion that a Closed 
Session is being held, the general nature of the matter(s) to be considered and the 
specific provision under the Act under which each item is permitted to be considered in 
Closed Session. 

6.14.5. Prior to moving into Closed Session, any Declarations of Interest shall be made by 
Members. 

6.14.6. Closed Meetings are to be listed on the Agenda in such a way as to provide the most 
information possible without compromising confidentiality or adversely affecting the 
Board’s  position. 

6.14.7. A meeting shall not be closed to the public during the taking of a vote except where the 
vote is for a procedural matter or giving directions or instructions to officers, the 
Recording Secretary or agents of the Board  or persons retained by or under contract 
with the Board. 

6.14.8. Confidential discussion during a Closed Session shall be limited to the issue 
described in the authorizing public resolution/Motion and nothing in this By-law 
confers the power of any Board Member(s) to make any decision or take any action 
unless, or until such action is presented and decided upon at an open meeting of the 
Board. 

6.14.9. No Member, the Recording Secretary or other person present during a Closed Session 
shall in any way, notify, distribute or make available to any person or other body, by any 
means, any reports or items, or disclose the nature or content of any documents or of 
discussions regarding any matters that are confidential or that have been obtained or 
considered in a Closed Session without approval of such release by the Board  or unless 



authorized under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
(MFIPPA). 

6.14.10. Upon returning to open session, a statement resulting from the Closed Session shall be 
provided regarding what took place including any declarations of interest during the 
Closed Session. 

6.14.11. The Recording Secretary shall be responsible for securing and maintaining a 
confidential record of all original documentation distributed or presented, relating to 
Closed Sessions. 

6.14.12. A separate set of Closed Session minutes shall be kept for each Closed Session which 
shall be kept in a secure and confidential location under the control of the Recording 
Secretary and shall only be open to those in attendance at the meeting, to others 
approved by the Board or as legislated. 

6.14.13. Closed Session minutes shall be circulated by the Recording Secretary and adopted in 
confidentiality at the next regular scheduled meeting. The adoption of the Closed 
Session minutes is a procedural matter and does not affect the validity or affect the 
resolutions/Motions recorded in the minutes. 

6.14.14. Where practical, Closed Sessions shall be scheduled at the end of the meeting. 

6.14.15. The obligation to keep information confidential shall continue after the Member ceases 
to be a Member of the Board or after the Recording Secretary ceases to be appointed 
by the Board. 

6.14.16. When Closed Sessions include advice from paid consultants hired on behalf of the 
Board, or the Board’s solicitor, the Closed Session may be held at a time prior to the 
start of the regular Board meeting, and if required, may impact the regular start time of 
the meeting. 

6.15 Motions in Which Notice Has Previously Been Given 

6.15.1. This section shall include proposed Motions which have appeared on a previous 
Agenda under the Notice of Motion category. The Member that brought forward the 
Motion shall be the first to speak to the proposed Motion before it is debated. 

6.15.2. This section shall also include items that have been approved by a two-thirds vote to 
be added to the Agenda. 

6.16 Notice of Motion 

6.16.1. A notice of Motion shall be submitted to the Recording Secretary in advance of the 
regularly scheduled Board meeting. 



6.16.2. Items listed under Notice of Motion shall not be introduced or debated and shall only be 
listed in the minutes. Items shall be introduced and debated at a subsequent meeting 
where they are listed under Motions. 

6.16.3. The Recording Secretary shall notify the Chair of all notices of Motion. 

6.17 Quorum 

6.17.1. If no Quorum is present fifteen (15) minutes after the time appointed for a meeting of 
the Board, the Recording Secretary shall record the names of the Members present 
and the meeting shall stand adjourned until the date of the next meeting; regular, 
special or Emergency. 

6.17.2. When Quorum is lost as a result of declarations of interest by one or more Members, the 
remaining Members shall be deemed to constitute Quorum, provided the number of 
Members is not fewer than two (2). 

6.17.3. The Chair shall call the meeting to order as soon after the hour fixed for the holding 
of the meeting that a Quorum is present. 

6.17.4. Members shall notify the Recording Secretary when intending to be absent from a 
Board, , Special or Emergency meeting for the purpose of ensuring Quorum at the 
meeting. 

6.17.5. When a Quorum is lost, the meeting shall stand recessed, and no further action shall 
be taken. If a Quorum is regained within ten (10) minutes the meeting shall proceed. 

6.17.6. If Quorum is not regained within ten (10) minutes, the meeting shall stand adjourned. 

6.18 Recess 

6.18.1. At a Board meeting, a Motion to recess shall be brought forward and shall set a time (ex. 
recess for 5 minutes) or state “until called to order by the Chair”. 

6.19 Adjournment 

6.19.1. All Meetings shall not exceed three (3) hours, unless a Motion to extend is approved 
by unanimous consent of the board. 

6.19.2. Notwithstanding Subsection 6.19.1 above, no meeting shall proceed beyond the 
designated time. All remaining items on an Agenda adjourned by the deadline, shall be 
moved to the next regularly scheduled meeting or a Special Meeting. 

6.19.3. There shall be no updates, questions or discussions once a meeting has been 
adjourned. 

7. Motions 

7.1 Motion Process 



7.1.1. All Motions shall be read aloud after which the Chair shall call for a mover and 
seconder. 

7.1.2. Only Motions that have been moved and seconded shall be recorded in the minutes. 

7.1.3. After a Motion has been moved and seconded, it shall be deemed to be in the 
possession of the Board and open for debate. The Board  may consent to the 
withdrawal of the Motion at any time before amendment or decision. 

7.1.4. Where Members of the public are to be heard on a matter, no Motion shall be received 
until they have been heard, and no further public participation shall be allowed at that 
meeting after the Motion has been duly moved and seconded. 

7.1.5. Whenever the Chair is of the opinion that an amending Motion is contrary to the main 
Motion, the Chair shall apprise the Members thereof immediately. A Member of the 
Board  may appeal the ruling of the Chair to the Board . If there is no appeal, the decision 
of the Chair shall be final. 

7.1.6. The Board , if appealed to, shall vote on the Motion without debate and its decision 
shall be final. 

7.1.7. All Members present, including the Chair, are entitled to vote on every Motion, unless 
the Member has declared an interest. A proxy vote is permitted. 

7.1.8. Every Member participating in the meeting, shall be deemed to vote against the 
Motion if they decline or abstain from voting, unless the Member is disqualified from 
voting by reason of a declared interest. 

7.1.9. No Member shall speak more than once until every Member has had an opportunity 
to speak towards the Motion. 

7.1.10. A Motion on which the voting results in a tie shall be considered defeated. 

7.1.11. When the Motion under consideration contains distinct recommendations, a Member 
may request that the vote be taken separately on each proposal. (See the Motion to 
“Divide” in the Motion Table) 

7.1.12. The Chair shall call the vote immediately after all Members desiring to speak to the 
Motion have spoken. 

7.1.13. Upon the Chair calling for a vote, no further speakers shall be permitted. 7.1.14. The 
manner of determining the vote on a Motion shall be by show of hands. 

7.1.14. No vote shall be taken at any meeting by any method of secret voting, except where 
permitted or required by law. 

7.1.15. The Chair shall announce the result of every vote. 



7.1.16. If a Member disagrees with the announcement of the result of any vote, the Member 
may object immediately to the announcement and require that a recorded vote be 
called. 

7.2 Reconsideration of a Motion 

7.2.1. Reconsideration of a Motion shall only be permitted at Board Meetings. 

7.2.2. Any proposal to reconsider a decision of the Board made within its current term shall 
require a Motion of reconsideration. 

7.2.3. A Motion to reconsider may only be introduced by a Member who voted on the 
prevailing side and shall require a two-thirds' vote of Members present. 

7.2.4. A Motion to reconsider shall be introduced by way of a Notice of Intention to the 
Board. 

7.2.5. Debate on a Motion for reconsideration shall be confined to reasons for or against 
reconsideration. 

7.2.6. No delegations shall be permitted to speak on a Notice of Motion to reconsider. 

7.2.7. If a Motion to reconsider is decided in the affirmative, reconsideration of the original 
Motion shall become the next order of business. 

7.2.8. During the term of the Board, a Motion to reconsider on a particular item shall not be 
permitted more than once nor shall a vote to reconsider be reconsidered. 

7.2.9. A Motion to Reconsider shall not be in order if the Board is made aware the question or 
By-law has been implemented, resulting in legally binding commitments as of the date 
the Motion to reconsider is moved. 

7.3 Notice of Intention 

7.3.1. A notice of the intention to reconsider a Motion shall be placed on the next Board 
Agenda. At the next Meeting after Notice is given a Motion to reconsider may be brought 
forward. 

7.4 Motion to Reconsider 

7.4.1. When a Motion for reconsideration is introduced, no discussion of the original Motion 
shall be allowed unless the Motion for reconsideration is approved by at least two-
thirds of the Members present and voting. 

7.4.2. A Motion to reconsider shall not be amended but may be debated. 

7.4.3. Debate on a Motion for reconsideration shall be confined to reasons for or against 
reconsideration or to such matters as new information which has come forward, an 



error in documentation presented or incorrect statements made during the original 
debate. 

7.4.4. A Motion to reconsider shall include the date of when the original Motion was passed. 

7.4.5. Should a Motion to reconsider be defeated, the original Motion shall remain in force 
and effect. 

7.5 Original Motion 

7.5.1. The original Motion being reconsidered shall be stated in the exact manner in which 
it was first presented and voted on. 

7.5.2. The debate on the original Motion being considered as a result of an affirmative Motion 
of reconsideration shall proceed as though it had never previously been voted on. 

7.6 Recorded Votes 

7.6.1. recorded votes shall only be permitted at Board Meetings. 

7.6.2. A recorded vote shall be taken when called for by any Member or when required by 
law. 

7.6.3. A Member may call for a recorded vote prior or immediately subsequent to the taking of 
the vote. This shall take place before the next item of business is considered. 

7.6.4. All Members, including the Chair, shall be required to vote when a recorded vote is 
called for, except when absent from the meeting or disqualified by a declared interest. 

7.6.5. When a recorded vote is requested and permitted, the Chair shall pose the question and 
the Recording Secretary shall call upon each Member, beginning with the requester of the 
recorded vote, followed by each Member in subsequent alphabetical order thereafter, at 
which time the Recording Secretary shall record the Members' votes. The Recording 
Secretary shall also record the number of Members absent. 

7.6.6. On a recorded vote, failure to vote by a Member who is present at the Meeting at the time 
of the vote and who is qualified to vote shall be deemed a negative vote. 

7.6.7. When a recorded vote is taken, the names of those who voted for and those who voted 
against the Motion and those absent shall be entered in the Board minutes. 

7.6.8. The Recording Secretary shall tabulate and announce the results of the vote.  

7.7 Point of Privilege 

7.7.1. A Member may raise a point of privilege directing attention to a matter that affects 
the rights of the Member or Members. 

7.7.2. A point of privilege shall take precedence over any other matter except during 
verification of a vote. 



7.7.3. A Member shall state the point of privilege to the Chair at the time of occurrence. 

7.7.4. A Member shall not be permitted to enter into any argument or introduce any Motion 
not related to the point of privilege. 

7.7.5. The Chair shall decide upon the point of privilege and advise the Members of the 
decision. 

7.7.6. Unless a Member immediately appeals the Chair's decision, the decision of the Chair 
shall be final. 

7.7.7. If the decision of the Chair is appealed, the question to be answered is “Shall the 
ruling of the Chair be upheld?” a vote shall be called without debate, and its results 
shall be final. 

7.7.8. When the matter has been determined to be a point of privilege, the Member shall 
be afforded an opportunity to propose a Motion in relation to that point of privilege. 

7.7.9. When the integrity of the Recording Secretary has been questioned, the Recording 
Secretary shall be permitted to make a statement to the Members. 

7.8 Point of Order 

7.8.1. A Member may raise a point of order to a perceived violation of the rules of procedure, 
except during verification of a vote. 

7.8.2. A Member shall state the point of order to the Chair at the time of the occurrence and 
shall quote the appropriate section of this by-law. 

7.8.3. The Chair shall decide upon the point of order and advise the Members of the 
decision. 

7.8.4. Unless a Member immediately appeals the Chair's decision, the decision of the Chair 
shall be final. 

7.8.5. If the decision of the Chair is appealed, the question to be answered is “Shall the 
ruling of the Chair be upheld?” a vote shall be called without debate, and its results 
shall be final. 

8. By-Laws 

8.1 By-law Approval Process 

8.1.1. Every By-Law shall be listed on the Agenda by an identifying number, followed by a 
brief description of the intent of the by-law. 

8.1.2. Every By-Law shall be adopted in a single Motion having been given three readings 
simultaneously. 



8.1.3. Prior to voting on the Motion, every by-law may be debated, subject to amendment, 
and may be deferred or referred to the Recording Secretary for further consideration 
before being voted on. 

8.1.4. Upon a two-thirds' Vote of the Members present and voting, third reading of any by-
law may be postponed until the next Meeting. In this instance only, the Motion shall 
be divided into two separate Motions. 

8.1.5. Every By-Law passed by the Board shall be signed by the Chair, or the Vice Chair in 
the absence of the Chair, and the Recording Secretary, showing the date of all 
readings, be kept in a volume for the year in which it was passed and shall be 
recorded in the electronic By-Law index. 

8.1.6. The Recording Secretary shall be authorized to make minor corrections to any By-
Law resulting from technical, or typographical errors prior to the By-Law being signed. 

8.2 Confirmatory By-law 

8.2.1. The proceedings at every regular and Special Meetings of the Board shall be confirmed 
by By-Law, so that every decision of the Board at that Meeting and every Motion passed 
thereat, unless required by an Act, Regulation or by-law, shall have the same force and 
effect as if each and every one of them had been the subject matter of a separate by-
law duly enacted. 

9. Amendment of Procedural By-Law 

9.1.1. No amendment or repeal of this By-Law or any part thereof shall be considered at 
any 

a) Notice of intention of the proposed amendment or repeal has been given at a 
previous Board meeting; and 

b) The waiving of this notice by the Board is prohibited. 

9.1.2. The Board shall be responsible for reviewing this By-Law at least once every term of 
the Board. 

10. Ultra Vires 

10.1.1. Should any sections of this By-Law, including any section or part of any schedules attached 
hereto, be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be ultra vires, the remaining 
sections shall nevertheless remain valid and binding. 

11. By-Laws to be Repeated 

11.1.1. All By-Laws or parts thereof and Motions passed prior to this By-Law which are in 
contravention of any terms of this By-law are hereby rescinded. 

12. Effective Date 

12.1.1. This By-Law shall come into effect on the date of its passing. 



By-Law XX-2025 

Schedule A 

Selection Process for Acting Chair 

Board 

• In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall be called upon to be the Chair of the 
meeting. 

• In the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair, the Board shall elect an Acting Chair from 
Members present who are able to participate. 

The above shall apply when a Chair is absent, unable, or unwilling to chair the meeting.  



 

ONTARIO REGULATION 409/23 

made under the 

COMMUNITY SAFETY AND POLICING ACT, 2019 

Made: December 14, 2023 

Filed: December 18, 2023 

Published on e-Laws: December 18, 2023 

Published in The Ontario Gazette: January 6, 2024 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR O.P.P. DETACHMENT BOARD MEMBERS 

APPLICATION AND INTERPRETATION 

1. (1) This Regulation sets out the code of conduct with which every member of an O.P.P. detachment board 

must comply. 

(2) For greater certainty, the existence of a good faith exception in this code of conduct does not limit the 

grounds on which it may be determined that a member of an O.P.P. detachment board has not contravened 

this code of conduct. 

2. In this Regulation, 

“conflict of interest” means a situation in which a member of an O.P.P. detachment board’s private interests 

or personal relationships place, or may reasonably be perceived to place, the member in conflict with their 

duties as a member of the O.P.P. detachment board; (“conflit d’intérêts”) 

“personal relationship” includes, but is not limited to, a relationship with any of the following persons: 

1 A current or former spouse or common-law partner of the board member. 

2 A current or former intimate partner of the board member. 

3 The board member’s children, including biological and adoptive children and stepchildren. 

4 The legal dependants of the board member. 

5 A child in the board member’s care. 

6 The board member’s grandparents, parents or siblings, including grandparents-in-law, parents-

in-law and siblings-in-law. (“rapports personnels”) 

CONDUCT BECOMING OF A BOARD MEMBER 

3. (1) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not conduct themselves in a manner that undermines 

or is likely to undermine the public’s trust in the O.P.P. detachment board or the Ontario Provincial Police. 

(2) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not be subject to discipline for a contravention of 

subsection (1) if, on a balance of probabilities, their conduct was in the good faith performance of their duties 

as a board member. 

4. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall comply with the Act and the regulations made under it. 

5. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not, by act or omission, conduct themselves in a manner that 

is likely to cause the board to fail to comply with the Act or the regulations made under it. 



6. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall comply with any rules, procedures and by-laws of the O.P.P. 

detachment board. 

7. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not substantially interfere with the conduct of O.P.P. 

detachment board meetings. 

8. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board contravenes this code of conduct if they are found guilty of an 

offence under the Criminal Code (Canada), the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Canada) or the 

Cannabis Act (Canada) that was committed after they were appointed as a member of the O.P.P. detachment 

board. 

9. (1) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not, in the course of their duties, treat any person in a 

manner that the member, at the time, knows or reasonably ought to know would contravene the Human 

Rights Code. 

(2) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not be subject to discipline for a contravention of subsection 

(1) if, on a balance of probabilities, the member’s conduct was in the good faith performance of their duties. 

10. (1) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall conduct themselves in a professional and respectful 

manner in the course of their duties including, without limitation, not using abusive or insulting language 

in the course of their duties. 

(2) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not be subject to discipline for a contravention of subsection (1) 

if, on a balance of probabilities, the member’s conduct was in the good faith performance of their duties. 

STATEMENTS AND ATTENDANCE 

11. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not knowingly make false statements pertaining to the 

duties of a member of an O.P.P. detachment board. 

12. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not purport to speak on behalf of the O.P.P. detachment 

board unless authorized by the board to do so. 

13. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall clearly indicate when they are expressing a personal 

opinion when commenting on an action or omission of the O.P.P. detachment board, the Ontario 

Provincial Police or a member of the Ontario Provincial Police. 

14. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not access, collect, use, alter, retain, destroy or disclose 

to any person information that has been obtained by or made available to the member in the course of 

their duties if doing so would be contrary to law. 

15. (1) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not disclose to the public information obtained or 

made available in the course of the member’s duties except as authorized by the O.P.P. detachment board 

or as required by law. 

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to information that was already made available to the public by a person 

who was authorized to do so prior to the member’s disclosure. 



16. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall attend all O.P.P. detachment board meetings unless able 

to provide a reasonable explanation for the absence. 

MISCONDUCT AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

17. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall disclose any conduct of another member of the O.P.P. 

detachment board that the member reasonably believes constitutes misconduct, 

(a) to the chair of the board; or 

(b) if the misconduct involves the chair, to the Inspector General. 

18. (1) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall disclose any charges laid against them under the 

Criminal Code (Canada), the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Canada) or the Cannabis Act 

(Canada) and any finding of guilt made in relation to those charges. 

(2) Subsection (1) only applies to charges or findings that were made after the member’s appointment to 

the O.P.P. detachment board. 

(3) The disclosure required by subsection (1) must be made to the person or body that appointed the 

individual as a member of the O.P.P. detachment board. 

19. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not apply for employment with the Ontario Provincial 

Police unless they resign from the board before applying. 

20. (1) A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall promptly disclose any conflict of interest, 

(a) to the chair of the board; or 

(b) if the conflict of interest involves the chair, to the Inspector General. 

(2) After making the disclosure required by subsection (1), the member shall disclose the conflict at the next 

meeting of the O.P.P. detachment board. 

21. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not use their position as an O.P.P. detachment board 

member to, 

(a) benefit themselves; 

(b) benefit one or more persons with whom they have a personal relationship; or 

(c) interfere with the administration of justice. 

22. A member of an O.P.P. detachment board shall not participate in discussion of or voting with respect to 

matters at O.P.P. detachment board meetings if the member has a conflict of interest in the matter. 

  



COMMENCEMENT 

Commencement 

23. This Regulation comes into force on the later of the day subsection 67 (4) of Schedule 1 (Community 

Safety and Policing Act, 2019) to the Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019 comes into force 

and the day this Regulation is filed. 


	Agenda
	5.1 SEOPPB - 12 Nov 2024 - Minutes
	7.2 Notice - Call for Resolutions
	7.3 Peel Police Service Board Human Rights and Police Governance Report
	7.4 Notice of the 2025 OAPSB Annual General Meeting
	7.5 Important Industry Communications
	7.6 The OAPSB Monthly Bulletin- January 2025 News and Updates
	7.7 GSPSB Correspondence Restating Support for Bill 173_Dec 11 2024-fwd dec 19
	7.7 Victim Services.Briefing Note.Zone 1A OACP-fwd Dec 19
	7.8 Communication with the Minister - $77 Million Funding Announcement
	7.9 Zone 1A Draft November 13th Meeting Minutes
	7.9 Zone 1a OAPSB Update November 13, 2024
	8.1 DC Report 11 Feb 25
	S1
	S2
	S3
	S4
	S5
	S6
	S7
	S8
	S9
	S10
	S11
	S12
	S13
	S14
	S15
	S16

	12.1 Draft - Travel Reimbursement Policy
	12.2 Draft - Procedural Policy



